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Bourgecois Bennett

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Russell "Tippy" DePaula, Mayor
and Members of the Council
City of Hammond, Louisiana

We have audited the accompanying primary government financial statements of the City
of Hammond, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1997, as listed in the foregoing table
of contents. These financial statement are the responsibility of the management of City of Hammond,
Louisiana. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these primary government financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matcrial
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

preseriation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opnion.

A Primary Government 1s a legal entity or body politic and includes all funds,
organizations, instifutions, agencies, departments, and offices that are not legally separate. Such
legally separate entities are referred to as component units. In our opinion, the primary government
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the primary
government of the City of Hammond, Louisiana, as of June 30, 1997, and the resulfs of its operations
and cash flows of its proprietary fund types and pension trust fund for the year then ended, in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

However, the primary government {inancial statements, because they do not include the
financial data of component units of the City of [lammond, Louisiana, do not purport to, and do not,
present fairly the financial position of the City of Hammond, Louisiana, as of June 30, 1997, and the
results of 1ts operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types and pension trust fund for the year
then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

1
) 340 West Tunnel Blvd., Suite 430 Certified Public PO Box 60600 S04 West Second Street
P.O.Box 21¢8 Accountants | Consultants | New Orleans, LA 70160-0600 P.O. Box 120%
Houma, LA 70361-2168 A Limited Liability Company | Heritage Piaza, Suite 800 Thibodaux, LA 703021205
Phone (504) 868.0139 Phone (504) B3|-4949 Phone (504) 447-5243
Fax {504} B79-194% Fax {(504) 833-9093
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As discussed in Note 1p, the City of Hammond, Louisiana changed iis method of

accounting for on-behalf payments of salaries and fringes (GASB 24), in order to adopt the provisions
ol the new standard.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
August 27, 1997 on our consideration of the City of Hammond, Louisiana's internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, recgulations,

confracts and grants,

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the primary government
financial statements of the City of Hammond, Louisiana, taken as a whole. The accompanying
schedules as listed in the table of contents including the combining and individual fund and account
group financial statements, and schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by U.S. Ofhce
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
primary government financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the primary government financial statements and, in our opinion,
arc fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the primary government financial statements
taken as a whole,

ﬁmgw» W [2.0.

Certified Public Accountants.

New Orleans, La.,
August 27, 1997,
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ASSETS
(ash
Investments, al cost
Reccivables {nel, if applicable of
allowances for doubtful accounts):
Franchise taxcs
Customers
Notes
Special assessments:
Current receivable
Ielinguent receivable
Other
[Due from other funds
[Due from other governments
Invenlory, at cost
Restricted assels;
Cash
Investments, al cosl
Fixed assets (ncl of
accumulated depreciation)
Other assels
Amount available for retirement
of long-term debt
Amount 10 be provide for
general long-term obligations

Total assets

I.IABILITIES
Accounts payable
Retainages payable
Payroll taxes payable
Claims payable
Duc to other funds

Payable from restricted asscts -
customer deposils

Notles payable-current portion
Notes payable-long term portion
General obligation bonds payable
Certificates of indebtedness
Capital lease obligation

Salarics payable

Accumulated Icave payable
Delerred revenue

Due to other governments

Tota! hiabilitics

FUND EQUITY
Contributed capital
Investment in general fixed assets
Retained earnings:
Rescrved
Unreserved - undesignated
Fund balances:
Reserved for inventory
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for debt service
Unreserved:
I>esignated
Undesignaled

Total retained earnings / fund balance
Total fund equity
Total liabilities and fund equity

Sce noles to financial statemenis.

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET -

ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

City of Hammond

June 30, 1997

Governmental Fund Types

Spccial Debt

General  Revenue Service
$ 12451 $ 51,159 0§ 2,628
1,024,355 1,921,430 2,441,590
94,871 ; -

. 228.796 .

100 - .

17.544 . -
347,461 1,495,423 -
127,269 ] ]
$1.624051  §$3,6%6,808  $2,444.218
$ 214283 $ 85064 % )
38.177 141 -

i 4,958 5 940

112,405 240 .
72.239 .

367,238 162642 5,940
127,269 _ ,
120,698 18,588 .

- . 2,323,442

. 2.014,860

1,008,846 1,500,718 114, B.&fé_
1,256,813 3,534,166 2,438,278
1,256,813 3,534,166 2438278
$1.624,051  $3.696,808  $2,444218

Capital

Projects

$ 4,762
1,632,056

34,381
58,936

170,518

205,831

18,945

_1,405,353

_ 1,424,304

1,424,304

S Mt Juiie

$1.730,135

$

b1

h

__Proprietary Fund Types
Internal
_Enterprise Service
61,747 $ 161,139
885,804 1,002,623
076,370 -
14,101 -
5,422 -
5,127 219954
4,234 .
1,027,237 -
14,864,104 -
38,409 .
17,588,555 $1,383,716
60,009 $ 2,206
08,233 -
5,161 -
- 399,184
333,986 -
160,000 -
2,585,000 -
12,252 -
68,416 -
03,782,363 401,390
11,006,629 .
743 804 982.3126
2 (55,759 -
2,799,563 982326
13,806,192 - 982,326
1,588,555 _3;__1,3:3_33,_’{_1(3_,

$1

———— -
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Exhibit A

.. _Account Groups
Fiduciary General General Total

Fund Type Fixed [.ong-Term (Memorandum

. Trusts Assets  Obligations  _ Only)

$ 301,723
%,005,62)

$ $,837 $ - ¥
97,763 -

" . i 94,871
] i . 676,370
' . i 228,796

. . i 14,101

. . . 5,422

- . - 225,181

. . . 51,925
4,905 . . 1,906,725
. . . 127,269

- “ - 4,234
A . - 1,027,237

- 10,885,112 . 25,749,216
) A - 38,409

- - 2,323 442 2,323 442
o e - . ?1@28 190 ] ?162_31]_99_

it Nosondiiel

$ 104505  $10885112  § 9,991,632  $43.408,732

$ 64 $ -8 - $ 408,711
- . . 148,296
i . . 43,479
. . . 399,184
2 462 . . 51,925

- - - 333,986
- - - 160,000

- 2,585,000
- - 8,514,000 8,514,000
- - 560,000 560,000
- . 124,527 124 527

- 124,897
- - 753,105 821,521

- 72239
ot - .. 832,197

22926 - 9951632 _ 14,975,362

el Pl il Bt

- 10,885,112 T 10,885,112

76,509 - - 1,802,639
- - - 2,055,759

i . ; 127,269
: - : : 158231
; i : : 2,323,442

- 25,070 . . 2,039,930
) ] . 4.029,759

e e . . R SN Repiuiedly. Sy

101,579 10,885,112 - 34,428 710

gt Denifippiiuglt: Solfiniiup . c e e mm e Miniiint Sl

$ 104,505,

—_ .

$10,885,112  § 9,951,632 $49,408,732

r . e————

F P SRR R

k
’
1
1
1
1
'
]
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOYERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

Revenues
laxes
l.icenses and permits
Court witness fees
Fines and forleitures
Sanitation service fees
Intergovernmental
Parks and recrcation
Airport
Interesi
Misccllancous

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
Intergovernmental
Public safely:
Police
Fire
Other
Highways and streets
Cemeteries and municipal grounds
Sanitation
Parks and recreation
Airport
Capital projects
Dcbt Service:
Principal retirement
Interest and charges
Paying agent fees

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceceds from lean
Sales of fixed assets
Opcerating transfers in
Opcrating transfers out

Total other financing
sources {uscs)

Excess Of Revenue and Other
Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund balances, beginning of year

Residual equity transfer
Fund balances, end of year

See notes to financial stalements.

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

S —_—

_General

$ 2,219,194
1,587,311

357,584
435,190
442,757
99,552
50,879
47.249
215078

514,794
2,136,759

3,375,564
2,397,957
282
015,415
472,813
461,773
288,744
176,393

_— = s e e ——

- 10,225,700

. (4,710,906)

37,769
5,344,091
.. (809,665}

- 4,572,195

—_—_————— -

(138,711)

1,395,524

-

—_ e

$ 1,256,813

__Governmental Fund Types
Special

Revenue

—_— ————— [

$ 8,725,954

49,408
161,850

131,600

- — e ——

_——— ——

146,616
26,122

236,274

321,830

15,918
3,679

— ————

.. .1,835,059

140,445

426,235

.._(8,205,582)

. (7,698,902

156,157

3,378,009

e mm— e m m——— = - A

$— = ﬂ:‘al:_sz:;_‘_i_l 166——

_— —_—

10873

9,079,685

1,224,626

Deht
_Service

< -

—

116,016

- - ey ———

116,016

956,000
614,633
_ 3,102

—_———

_h573,795.

(1,457,779)

1,564,900

— == =t L e e m— ———

_ 1,964,900

107,121

2,331,157

e ma it i am

$ .____g !11'3 8 2 2?8_

-

[ —— —————

Capital
. _Projects

—— —_———

$ .

777,672

58,013

e e hmee A T e -

.. ..835,685

08,922

1,809,441

—_———— —

1,918,363

_(1,082,678)

2,043,381
.. (82,234)

.. 1,961,147

878,469
553,685
... (7.850)

$ 1,424,304

Fiduciary

_ - ==

Exhibit B

Taotals

Expendable (Memorandum

_ Trusts

$ -

—_— e e e — .

_..2042)

_ (12,296)

16,965

. 16,965

4,669

20,401

$ 23070

]
;

. _Only)

310,945,148
1,587,311
49 408
357,584
435,190
1,424,967
HO 552
50,879
354,315
285,951

—_—_ =

- _1_51_590?3'“5

2,610,946
108,922

3,578,601
2,424,079
282
1,151,689
472,813
461,773
610,574
176,393
1,809,441

971,918
618,312
3,162

14,998,905

501,400

140,445

37.769

}.395.572
(9,157,481}

416,305

1,007,705
7,678,776
(7,850)

$ 8,678,631

[ —
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Exhibit C
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET (GAAI BASIS) AND ACTUAL -
GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND TYPES
City of Hammond
For the year ended June 30, 1997
. General Fund _ ... Special Revenue Fund Types
Variance; Variance:
Favorable Favorable
Budget ~  Actwal  (Unfavorable)  Budget =~ = Actual  (Unfavorablc)
Revenues
Taxes $ 2,166,000 § 2,219,194 $ 53,194 $ 8,613,500 § 8,725,954 $ 112,454
l.icenscs and permits 1,440,000 1,587,311 147,311 . . -
Court witness fees . - - 45,000 49 408 4 408
Fines aad forfeitures 308,500 357,584 49084 - - .
Sanitation service fees 425,000 435,190 10,190 - - -
Intergovernmental 424,062 442,757 18,695 201,595 161,850 (39,745)
Parks and recreation 108,450 9G.552 (8,898) - - -
Airport 52,150 50,879 (1,271) - - -
Interest 40,000 47,249 7,249 77,800 131,600 53,800
Misccllaneous ...250,020 275078 24958 5400 10873 5,473
Total revenues 5214282 5514794 300512 8943295 9,079,685 136390
Expenditures
General government 2,220,258 2,136,759 83,459 545,234 474,187 71,047
Public safety 5,801,200 5,773,803 27,397 475,595 172,738 302,857
Highways and strects 082,512 915,415 67,097 133,000 236,274 {103,274)
Cemetcries and municipal grounds 529,542 472,813 56,729 . - -
Sanitation 465,000 461,773 3,227 - - .
Parks and rccreation 307,573 268,744 18,829 717,407 321,830 395,577
Alrpori 175,703 176,393 (690) - - -
Debt service T e 19597 (19,597)
Total cxpenditures 10,481,788 10,225,700 256,088 1,871,236 1,224,626 646,610
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (5,267,506) _(4,710906) 556,600 7,072,050 7,855059 783,000
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from loan - - - - 140,445 140,445
Sales of fixed assets 38,000 37,769 (231) - - -
Operating transfers in 3,344,091 5,344,001 - 336,229 426,235 90,006
Operating transfers out . .{767,512) (809,665) _(42,153) (8,265,582) _ (8,263,582) -
Total other financing
sources (uses) 4614579 4,572,195 (42,384) _ (7,929,353) _ (7,698,902) 230451
Kxcess Of Revenue and Other
Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses (652,927 (138,711) 514,216 (857,294) 156,157 1,013,451
Fund balances, beginning of year 1,395,524 1,395,524 - 3,378,009 3,378,009
IFund balances, end of year $ 742,597 $.1,256.813  §$3514216  § 2,520,715 § 3,534,166 $1,013,45]
Sec notes 1o financial statements.
6




COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS - ALL PROPRIETARY.
FUND TYPES AND SIMILAR TRUST FUND

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

Operating Revenues
Scwer charge
Water sales
Tap-In and reconnect fees

Insurance charges
Insurance reimbursement
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Insurance
I*ension
Personnel services
Contractual services, supplics, materials and other
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenscs
Operating Income (Loss)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Intercst income
Intcrest expenses

Total non-operating revenues
(expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers
Operating Transfers Out
Net income (loss)

Add depreciation on fixed assets acquired by capital
contributions that reduces contributed capital

Increase (decrease) in retained earnings /
fund balances

Retained Earnings
Beginning of year

Residual equity transfer
End of year

See notes to financiat statements.

__Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise

—_———————r

$1,659,630
1,014,061
80,732

11,726

—_——————— —

—_—— —_———a -

—_———— e e -

$

Internat
Service

1,215,682
360,685

1,576,367

714,401
898,310
632,144

—— e —.

111,411
. (165,810)

(54,399)

446,895

— e —— —— -

446,895

362,216

809,111

1,982,602

7,850

—_——

$2,799,563

—_————

1,575,832

1,575,832

935

37,884

37,884

38,419

_—_— e ———————— e - —

38,419

38,419

943,907

$ 982,320

—_——_———

Fiduciary
Fund Type -
Pension
rust

—__—

$ -

16,930

16,930

(10,602)

(248,693)

(248,693)

325,202

$ 76,509

—_——— —

Total

(Memorandum

Only)

$1,659,630
1,014,061
80,732
1,215,682
360,685
11,726

——m-

4,342,516

1,575,832
27,532
714,401
898,310
652,144
- 3,808,219
o 474,297
166,225
~ (165,810)
415
474,712
(238,091)

236,621

362,216

598,837

3,251,711
7,850

$3,858,398

e rE—— E—— e —— e ——— — =
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Exhibit E

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND SIMILAR TRUST FUND

City Of Hammond
For the year ended June 30, 1997

Fiduciary

_ Proprietary Fund Types ~ Fund Type - Total
Internal Pension (Memorandum

_Enterprise Service  _ Trust ___Only)

Cash Flows From Operating Activitics
Operating income {loss) $ 501,294 $ 535 § (27,532) $ 474,297
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 1o
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation 647,535 - - 647,535
Amortization 4,609 - - 4,609
Provision for bad debt 3,349 - - 3,349
Change in current assets - (increase) decreasc:
Accounts receivable 140,018 (219,954) - (79,936)
Insurance deposits - 212,903 - 212,903
Due from other Governments 213,524 - - 213,524
Change in current liabilities - increase (decrease):
Accounts payable (19,169) (94,213) - (113,382)
Other payables 4,588 - - 4,588
Due 10 other governments 48,898 - - 48,898
Customer deposits (5,236) - - (5,236)
Claims payable . - 213920 - 21392
Total adjustments 1038116 172,656 - 1,210,772
Net cash provided by (uscd for) operating activities - 1L,539410 173,191 (27,532) ~ 1,685,069
Cash Flows Used For Noncapital Financing Activities
Operating transfer out e~ (238,091)  _ (238,091)
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing
Activities
Principal repayments (195,000) - - {195,000)
Capital contributions 901,085 . - 001,085
Interest expense (165,810) - - (165,810)
Payment for capital assets C@I3L27Y) - . (2,131,271)
Net cash used for capital and related financing activities ~(1,5%09%%) 0~ - ~(1,590,996)
Cash Flows From Investing Acfivities
Interest income 111,411 37,884 16,930 166,225
Purchase of investments (56,747) (111,143) - (167,890
Salec of investments e e 2480570 _ 248,570
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 54,664 (73,259) 265,500 - 246,905
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash 3,078 99,932 (123) 102,887
Cash
Beginning of year ... 68%03 61207 98 13L0%Y5
End of year $ 71,981 § 161,139 % 862 $ 233982

- i -_———_——— A —_————--

See noles to financial statements,

—rrr—— ——— =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

City of Hammond

June 30, 1997

Introduction

On April 15, 1977, the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana ordered, adjusted and
decreed that the City of Hammond (the City) shall institute the proposed Home Rule Charter dated April 11,
1977. The City operates under a Mayor-Council form of government,

Notel- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Reporting Entity

As the municipal governing authority, for reporting purposes, the City of Hammond is
considered a separate entity. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the Primary
Government (City of Hammond), (b) organizations for which the Primary Government is
financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which nature and significance of their
relationship with the Primary Government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting
entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 established criteria {or
determimng which component units should be considered part of the City of Hammond for
financial reporting purposes. The basis criterion for including a potential component unit
within the reporting entity is financial accountability. The GASB has set forth criteria to be
considered in determining financial accountability. This criteria includes:

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and
a. The ability of the municipality to impose its will on that organization and/or

b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or
impose specific financial burdens on the municipality.

2. Organizations for which the municipality does not appoint a voting majority but arc
fiscally dependent on the municipality.

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be misleading
if data of the organization is not included because of the nature or significance of the
relationship.
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Note 1 -

Exhibit F

(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
a. Reperting Entity (Continued)

Based on the previous criteria, the City of Hammond has determined that the following
component units are part of the reporting entity:

—Component Unit_ rB Criteria Used
City Court June 30, 1997 2
City Marshal June 30, 1997 2
Section 8 Housing December 31, 1996 2
Mortgage Authority June 30, 1997 2

The City of Hammond has chosen to issue financial statements of the Primary Government
only: therefore none of the previously listed component units are included in the
accompanying {inancial statements.

These primary government financial statements include all funds, account groups, and
organizations for which the City of Hammond maintains the accounting records. 'the
organizations for which the City of Hammond maintains the accounting records are
considered part of the Primary Government.

GASB Statement No. 14 provided for the issuance of primary government financial
statements that are separate from those of the reporting entity. However, the Primary
Government's financial stalements are not a substitute for the reporting entity's financial
statements. The accompanying primary government financial statements have been prepared
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as applied to governmental units.
These financial statements are not intended to and do not report on the reporting entity but
rather are intended to reflect only the financial statements of the Primary Government.

b. Fund Accounting

The municipality uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and the
results of its operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance aund
to aid financial management by segregating transactions relating to certain government
functions or activities.

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, On the other
hand, an account group is a financial reporting device designed to provide accountability for
certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do not directly
affect net expendable available resources,

10

—_— —

e ————— R




e J— —_—-

Note 1 -

Exhibit ¥
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
b. Fund Accounting (Continued)
Funds of the municipality are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary, and

fiduciary. In turn, each category is divided into separate fund types. The fund classifications
and a description of each fund type follow:

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of the municipality's gencral
activities, including the collection and disbursement of specific or legally restricted
monies, the acquisition or construction of general fixed assets, and the servicing of gencral
long-term obligations. Governmental funds include:

1. General Fund - the general operating fund of the municipality and accounts for all
financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in other funds.

2. Special Revenue Funds - account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that

are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

3. Debt Service Funds - account for transactions relating to resources retained and used

for the payment of principal and interest on those long-term obligations recorded in
the general long-term obligations account group.

4. Capital Projects Funds - account for financial resources received and used for the
acquisition, construction or improvement of capital facilities not reported in the other
governmental funds,

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for the activities similar to those found in the
private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound
financial administration. Proprietary funds differ from governmental funds in that their
focus is on income measurement, which, together with the maintenance of equity, ts an
important financial indicator. Proprietary funds include:

1. Enterprise Funds - account for operations (a) where the intent of the governing body
is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services 1o
the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination
of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposcs.

11




Note 1 -

Exhibit K
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
b. Fund Accounting (Continued)

2. Internal Service Fund - accounts for the financing of goods or services provided by
one department to other departments on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including
other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the municipality. Fiduciary funds

include:

1. Expendable Trust Funds - accounted for in esseniially the same manner as
governmental funds. The resources, including both principal and earnings, may be
expended.

2. Nonexpendable Trust Funds - accounted for in essentially the same manner as
proprietary funds. The principal may not be expended.

¢. DBasis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. All governmental funds and expendable trust funds are accounted for
using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only
current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. Operating
statements of these funds present increases and decreases in net current assets. The modificed

accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental funds and expendable trust funds. The
governmental funds and expendable trust funds use the following practices in recording
revenues and expenditures:

Revenues

Revenues are recoghized when they become measurable and available to finance
expenditures of the current fiscal year. Sales taxes are recognized as revenue in the month
in which such taxes are paid by taxpayers. Ad Valorem taxes are recognized as revenue
in the year budgeted, that is, in the year in which such taxes are billed and collected.
Other major revenues that are considered susceptible to accrual include earned grant
revenues and other intergovernmental revenues, charges for services and interest on
investments. Licenses and permits and court fines are recognized when reccived because
they are not objectively measurable,

12
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Note 1 -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
¢. Dasis of Accounting (Continued)

Expenditures

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis

Exhibit F
(Continued)

of accounting

when the related fund liability 15 incurred. Exceptions to this general rule are (1) principal
and Interest on general long-term debt is recognized when due; and (2) accumulated sick

pay, and other employee benefits which are not accrued.

Other Kinancing Sources (Uses)

Transfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid (and any other financing

source/use) are accounted for as other {inancing sources (uses).

The Proprietary Funds and Nonexpendable Trust Fund are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus and a determination of net income and capital
maintenance. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. The Proprietary Funds and
Nonexpendable Trust Fund use the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized

when earned and expenses are recognized at the time liabilities are incurred.

d. Budgets

The Primary Government municipality follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary

data reflected in the financial statements:

1. Prior to July, the Mayor submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for
the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes

proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. Public hearings are conducted at council meetings to obtain taxpayer comments.

3. Prior to July 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

4. Only the City Council is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between
departments within any fund or revise the total expenditures of any fund.

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the
year for the General and Special Revenue Funds except those Special Revenue Funds
established to account for a particular grant. Such grant funds are budgeted over the

life of the grant and not necessarily on an annual basis.

13
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Exhibit I
(Continued)

Note1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continucd)
d. Budgets (Continued)
6. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the City Council.
Individual amendments were not material in relation to the original appropriations

which were amended.

7. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

8. Those budgets which the City adopts are on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles as applied to governmental units.

Budgetary data for the Capital Project Funds has not been presented in the accompanying
combined financial statements as such funds are budgeted over the life of the respective

project and not on an annual basis.

c. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for
the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary accounting in the General
Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Capital Projects Funds, Encumbrances outstanding at year
end are reported as reservations of fund balances because they do not constitute expenditures
nor liabilities,

f. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits and interest-bearing demand deposits accounts.
Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits and those investments with original
maturities of 90 days or less. Under state law, the municipality may deposit funds in demand
deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits with
state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal offices
in Louisiana. The City had no cash equivalents at June 30, 1997,

Under state law, the municipality may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes or
certificates. These are classified as investments. In addition, local governments in Louisiana
are authorized to invest in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool, Inc. (LAMP), a nonprofit
corporation formed by an initiative of the State Treasurer and organized under the laws of the
State of Louisiana, which operates a local government investment pool. Investments are
stated at cost.

14
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Exhibit ¥
(Continued)

Note1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
g, Short-Term Interfund Receivables / Payables

During the course of operations, numerous {ransactions occur between individual funds for
goods provided or services rendered, These receivables and payables are classified as duc
from other funds on the balance sheet. Short-term interfund loans are classified as interfund
receivables or payables.

h. Inventorics

All inventoriable items, such as gasoline, signs and water and sewer supplies are accounted
for by the Central Purchasing Department. Inventory is valued at cost (first-in, first-out). The
cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are purchased.
Reported inventories are equally offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that they
do not constitute "available spendable resources” even though they are a component of net
current assets.

i. Bad Dcbts

Uncollectible amounts due for Ad Valorem taxes and customers' utility receivables are

recognized as bad debts through the establishment of an allowance account, at the time
information becomes available, which would indicate the uncollectibility of the particular
receivable.

i- Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for
their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their usc 1s
limited by applicable bond covenants.

k. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures at the time purchased or
constructed, and the related assets are capitalized (reported) in the general fixed assets
account group. Public domain or infrastructures are not capitalized. Interest costs incurred
during construction are capitalized. No depreciation has been provided on general fixed
assets. All fixed assets are valued at historical cost or estimated cost if historical cost is not
available.
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Exhibit ¥
(Continued)
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Note1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
k. Fixed Assets (Continued)

Fixed assets used in the proprietary fund operations are included on the balance sheet of the
fund, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by
proprietary fund operations is charged as an expense against operations. Depreciation 1s
computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives, stated in years:

Water and Sewer
Buildings 25 years
Improvements 20 - 50 years
Equipment 4 - 10 years

. Long-Term Obligations

Long-term obligations expected to be financed from governmental funds are reported in the
general long-term obligations account group. Expenditures for principal and interest
payments for long-term obligations are recognized in the governmental funds when due.
Iong-term obligations expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted
for in those funds.

m. Fund Equity
Contributed Capital
Contributed capital is recorded in proprietary funds that have received capital grants or
contributions from developers, cusiomers, or other funds when such resources are restricted
for the acquisition or construction of capital assets. Contributed capital is amortized bascd

on the depreciation recognized on that portion of the assets acquired or constructed from such

resources. Depreciation charged to contributed capital for the year ended June 30, 1997 was
$362,216.

Reserves

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally
segregated for a specific future use.

Designated Fund Balances

Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for future use of financial resources.

16




Exhibit F
(Continued)

Notel1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continucd)
m. ¥und Equity {Continued)
Residual Equity Transfer
A residual equity transfer represents nonrecurring or nonroutine transfer between funds.
Because these transfers are not associated with the operations of the funds, they are recorded

as adjustments to fund balance,

n. Compensated Absences

The cost of current leave privileges, computed in accordance with GASB Statement No, 16,
is recognized as a current-year expenditure in the governmental funds when leave is actually
taken. The cost of leave privileges, not requiring current resources, is recorded in the gencral
long-term obligations account group. Il.eave privileges associated with employees of the
proprietary funds are recorded as a fund liability and operating expense.

o. Use of IEstimates

The City uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and assumptions affect the
reporied amounts of assets and liabilitics, and the reported revenues and expenditures. Actual
results could vary from the estimates that are used.

p. New Accounting Standards

For the year ended June 30, 1997, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 24 entitled
"Accounting and Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance." The new
standard requires the recording of revenue and expenditures for pass-through grants and on-

behalf payments for fringe benefils and salaries. Disclosures as required can be found in
Nofte 22.

q. Total Columns on Combined Statements - Overview

Total columns on combined statements are captioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate that
they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present
financtal posifion, results of operations, or changes in financial position in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation.
Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.
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Note 3 -

Exhibit F
(Continued)

AD VALOREM TAXES

Ad Valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year, Taxcs
are levied by the City during the year and are billed to taxpayers in November. Billed taxes
become delinquent on March 1 of the following year. Revenues from Ad Valorem taxes are
budgeted in the year billed and recognized as revenue when received. The City bills and collects

its own property taxes using the assessed value determined by the Tax Assessor of Tangipahoa
Parish,

The City is permitted by state law to levy taxes up to seven mills of assessed valuation for gencral
operating purposes. In addition, voters renewed a ten year millage in 1996 of two mills to be used
for public improvements upkeep. The total is for general government services. No assessment
was required for payment of long-term debt. On November 6, 1990, the voters of the City passed
a ten (10) Mills property tax for a period of ten (10 years), beginning with the year 1991, for the
purpose of maintaining and acquiring police and fire protection services, facilities and equipment
and paying Police and Fire Department salary adjustments. For the year ended June 30, 1997,
taxes of 19.18 mills were levied on property with assessed valuations totaling $85,680,004. Total
taxes levied was $1,643,344.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At June 30, 1997, the City of Hammond has cash and cash equivalents (book balances) totaling
$301,723, as follows:

Cash on hand $ 1,140
Demand deposits 30,487
Interest-bearing demand deposits 270,096

Total 301,723

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market value. Under state law, these
deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the
pledge of securities owned by the fiscal apent bank. The market value of the pledged sccurities
plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal

agent. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or
custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties.

At June 30, 1997, the City of Hammond has $614,502 in deposits (collected bank balances).
These deposits are secured from risk by $100,000 of federal deposit insurance and $514,502 of
pledged securities held by the custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank (GASB
Category 3).

18
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Exhibit F
(Continued)

Note3- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

FEven though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the
provisions of GASB Statement 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory
requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of
being notified by the City that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand.

Noted4 - INVESTMENTS

Investments held at June 30, 1997, of $10,032,858, are in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool,
Inc. (I.LAMP), a local government pool (see Note 1). In accordance with GASB Codification
Section 150.165, the investment in LAMYP at June 30, 1997, is not categorized in the three risk
categories provided by GASB Codification Section 150.164 because the investment is in the pool
of funds and therefore not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.
LLAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., a nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the
State of Louisiana, which was formed by an initiative of the State Treasury in 1993. The
corporation is governed by a board of directors comprising the State Treasurer, representatives
from various organizations of local government, the Government Finance Officers Association
of Louisiana, and the Society of Louisiana CPA's. Only local governments having contracted to
participate in LAMP have an investment interest in its pool of assets. The primary objective of
LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the placement of public funds in short-term,
high-quality investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in
which local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest. Accordingly, LAMP investments
are restricted to securities issued, guaranteed, or backed by the U. S. Treasury, the U. S.
Government, or one of its agencies, enterprises, or immstrumentalities, as well as repurchasc
agreements collateralized by those securities. The dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of
LLAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 days, and consists of no securities with matuntics
in excess of 397 days. LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate
access to their account balances.
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Exhibit K

ESTIMATED UNCOLLECTIBLE RECEIVABLES

Receivable and the applicable allowance at June 30, 1997 are as follows:

Fund Type / Services

Governmental fund types:
General fund:
Franchise taxes
Other
Special revenue funds:
Notes
Proprietary fund types:
Enterprise funds
Customers

Special assessments
Other
Internal Service fund:

Insurance reimbursement

(Continucd)
Allowance for
_Amount = Uncollectible Receivables
$94871 $ - $94 871
100 - 100
260,922 32,126 228,796
718,370 42.000 676,370
19,523 - 19,523
5,127 - 5,127
219,954 - 219,954

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, TRANSFERS IN, TRANSFERS OUT

General fund

Special revenue funds
Debt service funds
Capital projects funds
Fiduciary funds

Totals

General fund

Special revenue funds
Debt service funds
Capital projects funds
Fiduciary funds

Totals

Interfund Interfund
Receivables  Payables
$17.544 $ -

- 4,958

- 5,940

34,381 38,565

- 2,462

$51,925 $51,925

Transfers In Transiers Out

$5,344,091 § 809,665

426,235 8,265,582
1,564,900 -

2,043,381 82,234
16,965 238.091

$9,395,572  $9,395,572
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Note 7 -

Nofc 8 -

DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

State of Louisiana:;
Video poker
Beer and tobacco taxes
Workmens' compensation
l.aw enforcement grant
Aviation grant
1].S. Department of Justice
Tangipahoa Parish Rural Fire Dist #2:
Fire insurance rebate
Fire prevention and protection allocation
Tangipahoa Parish School Board
City Court
FAA
Other governments

Total due from other governments

CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows:

Balance
July 1, 1996 Additions
l.and $ 1,350,650 $ 107,500
Buildings 4,612,340 302,000
Vehicles 2,763,706 533,973
Equipment 1,304,514 233,365
Totals $10,031.210  $1,176,838

21

Exhibit F
(Continued)

$ 107,704
37,664

37

9,651
5,894
24,619

31,223
120,000
1,486,389
30,213
53,042

269

$1.906,725

Balance

Deletions June 30, 1997

$ - § 1,458,150
- 4,914,340
252,089 3,045,590
70,847 1,467,032

$322.936 $10,885.112
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Note 9 -

CHANGLES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

Exhibit F
(Continued)

A summary of proprietary fund type property, plant and equipment as of June 30, 1997 follows:

Land

Water:
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles

Line and mains
Sewer:

Buildings

Equipment

Vehicles

[.ine and mains

Construction in progress
Total

Less: accumulated depreciation

Net

Water
and Sewer

$ 23,750

40,813
138,903
340,234

5,261,414

60,230
175,279
182,092

14,118,929

177,745

20,519,389

{2.055.,285)

$14,864,104

Construction in progress is composed of expenditures at June 30, 1997 in the amount of $177,745

for sewer improvement.

RESTRICTED ASSETS PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
Restricted assets were applicable to the following at June 30, 1997:
Meter deposit accounts
3ond sinking fund
Bond reserve fund

Bond contingency fund

Total

22
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(Continued)

Note 10 - CHANGES IN LLONG -TERM OBLIGATIONS

Following is a summary of bond transactions of the City for the year ended June 30, 1997:

General
Obligation
Bonds payable at July 1, 1996 $9.325.000
Bonds issued -
Bonds retired (811,000)
Bonds payable at June 30, 1997 $8,514.000

Following is a summary of the certificates of indebledness transactions of the City for the year
ended June 30, 1997

Certificates of

Indebtedness
Certificates of indebtedness payable at July 1, 1996 $ 705,000
Certificates 1ssued -
Certificates retired (145,000)
Certificates of indebtedness payable at June 30, 1997 $ 560,000

Following is a summary of utility revenue bond transactions of the City for the year ended Junc

30, 1997;
Utility
Revenue
Bonds
Utility revenue bonds payable at July 1, 1996 $2,940,000
Revenue bonds issued -
Revenue bonds retired (195,000)
Utility revenue bonds payable at June 30, 1997 $2.745,000

23




——— — — — m— m— m— = m— m— — o,

Note 10 -

CHANGES IN LONG -TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

In February 1997, the City acquired certain equipment tor the public works department which was
{financed through an installment purchase agreement. The agreement requires 48 monthly
payments of principal and interest of $3,266 through January 1, 2001 bearing interest at 5.5%.
The debt is currently being serviced through the Special Revenue - Sales Tax Fund. The
following is a summary of loan transactions of the City for the year ended June 30, 1997:

Loan payable at July 1, 1996
Proceeds from loan

Principal payments

Loan payable at June 30, 1997

General Obligation Bonds

$300,000 1973 Public Improvement serial bonds due in annual installments
of principal and semiannual installments of interest through February 1,

1998:; interest $40,000 at 5.10%.

$377,000 1974 Public Improvement Sales Tax #4 serial bonds due in
annual installments of principal and semiannual installments of interest
through March 1, 1999; interest on $55,000 at 5.40%, and on $30,000 at
5.00%.

$314,000 1976 Public Improvement Sales Tax #5 serial bonds due in
annual installments of principal and semiannual installments of interest
through March 1, 2001; interest on $5,000 at 6.00%.

$4,350,000 1987 Public Improvements Series 2C serial bonds due in
annual installments of principal and semiannual installments of interest
through December 1, 2007; interest on
$205,000 at 6.75%, on $220,000 at 6.90%,
$235,000 at 7.00%, on $255,000 at 7.10%,
$275,000 at 7.20%, and on $2,175,000 at 7.25%.

$6,805,000 1991 Public Improvement Refund Bonds, Series 2D, due in
annual installments of principal and semiannual installments of interest
through December 1, 2004; interest on
$580,000 at 5.40%, on $620,000 at 5.55%,
$665,000 at 5.65%, on $710,000 at 5.80%,
$755,000 at 5.90%, on $805,000 at 6.00%,
$450,000 at 6.05%, and on $480,000 at 6.10%.

Total General Obligation Bonds Payable
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$ -
140,445
(15,918)
$124,527

$ 20,000

60,000

4,000

3,365,000

5,065,000
$8,514,000
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(Continued)

Note 10 - CHANGES IN LONG -TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

A schedule of the outstanding 1973 series bonds and the interest and principal requirements by
dates follows:

Due Principal Interest _Total
August 1, 1997 $ - $ 510 $ 510
February 1, 1998 _20.000 210 20,510

Totals $20,000 $1,020 $21.020

A combined schedule of the outstanding sales tax #4 and #5 Series bonds and the interest and
principal requirements by dates is as follows:

Sales Tax #4 Sales Tax #5

Due Date: Principal  Interest Principal Interest _ Totals _
September 1, 1997 $ - $1,620 § - $120 $ 1,740
March 1, 1998 30,000 1,620 1,000 120 32,740
September 1, 1998 - 750 - 90 840
March 1, 1999 30,000 750 1,000 90 31,840
September 1, 1999 - - - 60 60
March 1, 2000 - - 1,000 60 1,060
September 1, 2000 - - - 30 30
March 1, 2001 - - 1,000 30 1,030
Totals $60,000  $4,740  $4.000 $600 $£69,340
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CHANGES IN LONG -TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Exhibit K

(Continued)

A combined schedule of the outstanding Public Improvements Series 2C and 2D bonds and the
interest and principal requirements by dates is as follows:

Due Date
December 1, 1997
June 1, 1998
December 1, 1998
June 1, 1999
December 1, 1999
June 1, 2000
December 1, 2000
June 1, 2001
December 1, 2001
June 1, 2002
December 1, 2002
June 1, 2003
December 1, 2003
June 1, 2004
December 1, 2004
June 1, 2005
December 1, 2005
June 1, 2006
December 1, 2006
June 1, 2007
December 1, 2007

Tolals

- Series 2C |
Prncipal __Interest
$ 205,000 §$ 120,530
- 113,611
220,000 113,611
- 106,021
235,000 106,021
- 97,796
255,000 07,796
- 88.744
275,000 88,744
- 78,844
295,000 78,844
- 68,150
320,000 68,150
- 56,550
345,000 56,550
. 44,044
375,000 44,044
- 30,450
405,000 30,450
. 15,769
435,000 15,7769
$3.365,000 §1 220,488

Recap of General Obligation Bonds

1973 Public Improvement

Serial Bonds

Sales Tax #4 and #5 Serial Bonds
Series 2B and 2D Serial Bonds

Totals
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Serjes 21)
Principal Interest Totals
$ 580,000 $ 146,916 $ 1,052,446
. 131,256 244 867
620,000 131,256 1,084,867
- 114,051 220,072
665,000 114,051 1,120,072
- 05,265 193,061
710,000 95,265 1,158,061
- 74,675 163,419
755,000 74,675 1,193,419
- 52,403 131,247
805,000 52,403 1,231,247
- 28,253 96,403
450,000 28,253 866,403
- 14,640 71,190
480,000 14,640 896,190
i - 44,044
- - 419,044
- - 30,450
- - 435,450
- - 15,769
- - 450,769
$5,065,000  $1,168,002 $11,118,490
_Principal _Interest Total
$ 20,000 1,020 % 21,020
64,000 3,340 69,340
8,430,000 _2.688.490 11,118,490
000 $2,694,850 $11,208,850
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Note 10 -
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CHANGES IN LONG -TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

The Sales Tax Series #4 and #5 and Series 2C & 2D Bond Indentures provides that all revenues
of the Sales Tax Fund are pledged for the purposes and in the following order of priority:

a. Reasonable and necessary expenses of collecting the tax;

b. Payments into the Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund for each issue of the amount required to
pay maturing bonds and coupons, such payments to be made in equal monthly

installments:

c. Payments into the Sales Tax Bond Reserve Fund for each issue for a specified amount pet
morith until the fund reaches an amount equal to the highest future annual principal and

interest requirements for any succeeding calendar year;

d. All revenues not required for the above payments shall be regarded as surplus and may be
used by the City for any of the purposes for which the imposition of the tax is authorized

or for the purpose of retiring future bonds.

The balances required in the Sinking Funds and Reserve Funds from a strict interpretation of the
Bond Resolutions, as compared to the actual balances, are reflected in the following schedules

(These balances are reported in the cash and investment balances in the current asset section of

the related balance sheets of the Debt Service Funds):

—Sinking Funds __

Required balances

Actual balances
Excess

Reserve Funds

Required balances
Actual balances
Excess

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. I'he

Sales Tax
Series

#4 and #5
Bonds

$ 9,947
62,141
$52.194

Sales Tax
Series
#4 and #5
_ Bonds
$29.840
34,644
$ 4.804

Sales Tax
Series
#2C & #2D
Bonds __Total
$502,491 $512,438
_707.986 170,127
$205.,495 $257.689
Sales Tax
Series
#2C & #2D
__Bonds Total
$1,362,493  $1,392,333
_1,368,765 1,403,409

$ 6272 $ 11,076

City is in compliance with all other material limitations and restrictions.
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Exhibit F
(Continued)

Note 10 - CHANGES IN LONG -TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Water Revenue Bonds

$1,300,000, 1990 Water Revenue Bonds due in annual installments of principal and semiannual
installments of interest through July 1, 2010:

interest on $50,000 at 7.00%, interest on $55,000 at 7.10%,

interest on $120,000 at 7.20%, interest on $65,000 at 7.25%,

interest on $70,000 at 7.30%, interest on $75,000 at 7.35%,

interest on $80,000 at 7.40%, interest on $90,000 at 7.45%,

interest on $425,000 at 7.50% $1,030.000

The balances required in the Contingency Fund, Sinking Fund, and Reserve Fund from a strict
interpretation of the Bond Resolution, as compared to actual balances, are reflected in the
following schedule:

Contingency Sinking Reserve

Fund _Fund _Fund

Required balances $100,000 $ - $129.000
Actual balances 100,474 27,869 129.594
I<xcess $ 474 $27,869 $ 594

Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds

$2,150,000, 1993 Water & Sewer Revenue Bonds due in annual installments of principal and
semiannual installments of interest through December 1, 2005:

interest on $160,000 at 4.30%,

interest on $165,000 at 4.50%, interest on $170,000 at 4.70%.

interest on $180,000 at 4.75%, interest on $190,000 at 4.90%,

interest on $195,000 at 5.00%, interest on $205,000 at 5.05%,

interest on $220,000 at 5.20%, interest on $230,000 at 5.25% $1,715,000

The balances required in the Contingency Fund and Sinking Fund, from a strict interpretation of
the Bond Resolution, as compared to actual balances, are reflected in the following schedulc:

Contingency Sinking
—Fund _  _Fund

Required balances - $158,312 $100,314
Actual balances _ 200911 115,588
Excess $ 42,599 b 15274
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Note 10 -

CHANGES IN LONG -TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

A schedule of the outstanding 1990 Water Revenue Bonds and interest and principal requircment

by date is as follows:

——Due Date Principal |

January 1, 1998 $ - $ 37,925
July 1, 1998 50,000 37,925
January 1, 1999 - 36,175
July 1, 1999 55,000 36,175
January 1, 2000 - 34,223
July 1, 2600 60,000 34,223
January 1, 2001 . 32,077
July 1, 2001 60,000 32,077
January 1, 2002 - 29,918
July 1, 2002 65,000 29,918
January 1, 2003 - 27,561
July 1, 2003 70,000 27,561
Januvary 1, 2004 - 25,006
July 1, 2004 75,000 25,006
January 1, 2005 - 22,250
July 1, 2005 80,000 22,250
January 1, 2006 - 19,290
July 1, 2006 90,000 19,290
January 1, 2007 - 15,938
July 1, 2007 95,000 15,938
January 1, 2008 - 12,375
July 1, 2008 100,000 12,375
January 1, 2009 - 8,625
July 1, 2009 110,000 8,625
January 1, 2010 - 4,500
July 1, 2010 120,000 4,500

Totals 1,030,000

The Water Revenue Bonds will be secured by and payable solely from the income and revenues
to be derived by the City from the operations of the public waterworks plant and distribution
system of the City, after provisions have been made for the payment therefrom of the reasonable

and necessary expenses of operating and maintaining the system.
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Exhibit F
(Continucd)

Anterest _ Totals

37,925
87,925
36,175
91,175
34,223
94,223
32,077
92,077
29,918
94,918
27,561
97,561
25,006
100,006
22,250
102,250
19,290
109,290
15,938
110,938
12,375
112,375
8,625
118,625
4,500
124,500

00 $611,726  $1,641,726
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Exhibit ¥
(Continued)

Note 10 - CHANGES IN LONG -TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

A schedule of the outstanding 1993 Water & Sewer Revenue Bonds and interest and principal
requirements by date 1s as follows:

__DueDate _Principal _Interest  __Totals
December 1, 1997 $ 160,000 $ 41,886 $ 201,886
June 1, 1998 - 38,446 38,446
December 1, 1998 165,000 38,446 203,446
June 1, 1999 - 34,734 34,734
December 1, 1999 170,000 34,734 204,734
June 1, 2000 - 30,739 30,739
December 1, 2000 180,000 30,739 210,739
June 1, 2001 - 26,464 26,464
December 1, 2001 190,000 26,464 216,464
June 1, 2002 - 21,809 21,809
December 1, 2002 195,000 21,809 216,809
June 1, 2003 - 16,934 16,934
December 1, 2003 205,000 16,934 221,934
June 1, 2004 - 11,757 11,757
December 1, 2004 220,000 11,757 231,757
June 1, 2005 - 6,038 6,038
December 1, 2005 230,000 ___ 6,038 236,038

Totals $1,715,000 $415,728  $2.130,728

The Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds will be secured by and payable solely from income and

revenues to be derived by the City from the operations of the public waterworks and sewer plants
distribution system of the City, after provisions have been made for the payment therefrom of the
reasonable and necessary expenses of operating and maintaining the system.

Certificates of Indebtedness

$1,100,000, 1990 Certificates of Indebtedness serial
bonds due in annual installments of principal and
semiannual installments of interest through July 1,
2000; interest on $170,000 at 7.20%, on $180,000
at 7.25%, and on $210,000 at 7.30% 0.00
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Note 10 - CHANGES IN LONG -TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Exhibit I
(Continued)

A schedule of the outstanding 1990 Certificates and the interest and principal requirements by

date is as follows:

__Dmue Date

January 1, 1998
July 1, 1998
January 1, 1999
July 1, 1999
Janvary 1, 2000
July 1, 2000

Totals

Principal
$ ]
170,00

180,000
210,000

$5060,000

_Interest
$20,310
20,310
14,190
14,190
7,665
1,605

$84,330

Totals

$ 20,310
190,310
14,190
194,190
7,665

217,665

644,330

The Certificates of Indebtedness will be secured by and payable from a pledge and dedication of
the excess of annual revenues of the City above statutory, necessary and usual charges in each of
the fiscal years ending June 30, 1998 to June 30, 2000, inclustve.

The balances required in the Sinking Fund and Reserve Fund from a strict interpretation of the
Bond Resolution, as compared to actual balances, are reflected in the following schedule:

Required balances
Actual balances

Excess

31

Sinking

Reserve

_JFund _Fund

$ -

$110,000

19317 110,506
$12.317 32006
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Note 10 -

Note 11 -

CHANGES IN LLONG -TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Exhibit F

(Continued)

The City received Utility Relocation Assistance Funding from the State of Louisiana Department
of Transportation and Development in order to relocate certain utility lines throughout the City.
This funding is not considered a loan or a grant and no interest is charged; however, it must be
repaid to the State. The total amount originally due to the State was $490,276 of which ten
percent of the remaining balance is due annually. A payment of $40,000 was made by the City
during the year ended June 30, 1997. This amount was less than the ten percent payable during
the year and the difference will be added to the fiscal year June 30, 1998 payment. The balance

due at June 30, 1997 is $450,276. Future repayments to the State are scheduled as follows:

Year Ending
_June 30,

1998
1999
2000

2001
2002 and beyond

Total

DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTS

A summary of due to other governments at June 30, 1997 follows:

Due to State of Louisiana -

Airport drainage and runway improvements

Due to State of L.ouisiana -
Morrison Road relocation project

Due to State of Louisiana -
Sales taxes

Due to Sewer District Number |

Due to Marshall's Office

Total

$ 54,000
40,000
40,000
40,000

450.2

$170,518

450,276

5,964

|1
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Note 12 -

Note 13 -

Exhibit K
(Continued)

METER DEPOSITS

Meter deposiis are paid by customers upon application for utility services and are refundablc to
them upon termination of service. Receipts from meter deposits are deposited in a meter deposit
account and refunds of deposits on termination of service are made from the same account,

The City has a certificate, in addition to the meter deposit account, which is designated
specifically for meter deposits. At June 30, 1997, meter deposits amounted to $333,986 and the
balance of cash and investments in the meter deposit account totaled $457,034.

PENSION PLAN

The City of Hammond contributes to the Municipal IEmployees Retirement System of Louisiana,
the Firefighters' Retirement System of Louisiana and the Municipal Police Employees Retirement

System of Louisiana. The City's payroll for employees covered by the retirement systems for the
year ended June 30, 1997 was $5,442,247.

a. Municipal Employecs' Retirement System

Plan Description - The City contributes to Plan A of the Municipal Employees’
Retirement System of Louisiana (the System), cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit public employee retirement system (MERS), which is controlled and administered
by a separate Board of Trustees. The System provides retirement, deferred and disability
benefits, survivor's benefits and cost of living adjustments to plan members and
beneficiaries. Act 356 of the 1954 Louisiana Legislative Session established the plan.
The System is governed by Louisiana Revised Statutes 11:1731 through 11:1866,
specifically, and other general laws of the State of Louisiana. The System issucs a
publicly available financial report that includes f{inancial statements and required
supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to
Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana, 79370 Office Park Boulevard,
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809,

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute 9.25% of their annual-covered
salary and the City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current
rate is 6.25% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members and the
City are established and may be amended by slate statute. The City's contributions to the
System for the years ended June 30, 1997, 1996 and 1995 were $139,764, $128,205 and
$110,399, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.
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Note 13 -

(Continued)

PENSION PLAN (Continued)

b. Firefighters' Retirement System

Plan Description - The City contributes to the Firefighters' Retirement System of
Louisiana (the System), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit public
retirement system, which is controlled and adminmstered by a separate Board of Trustecs.
The System provides retirement, deferred and disability benefits, survivor's benefits and
cost of living adjustments to plan and members and beneficiaries. Act 434 of the 1979
Louisiana Legislative Session established the plan. The System is Governed by Louisiana
Revised Statutes 11:2251 through 11:2269, specifically, and other general laws of the
State of Louisiana. The System issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report

may be obtained by writing to Firefighters' Retirement System of Louisiana, 2051
Silverside Drive, Suite 210, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70808-4136.

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute 8% of their earnable
compensation and the City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The
current rate is 9% of annual-covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan
members and the City are established and may be amended by state statute. The City's
contributions to the System for the years ended June 30, 1997, 1996 and 1995 were
$123,298, $119,340 and $92,006, respectively, equal to the required contributions for cach
year.

Municipal Police Employces' Retirement System

Plan Description - The City contributes to the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement
System of Louisiana (the System), cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit public
employee retirement system (MPERS), which is controlled and administered by a separate
Board of Trustees. The System provides retirement, deferred and disability bencfits,
survivor's benefits and cost of living adjustments to plan members and beneficiaries. Act
189 of the 1973 Louisiana Legislative Session established the plan. The System is
governed by Louisiana Revised Statutes 11:2211 through 11:2233, specifically, and other
general laws of the State of L.ouisiana, The System 1ssues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the
System. That report may be obtained by writing to Municipal Police Employees'
Retirement System of Louisiana, P.O. Box 94095, Capital Station, Baton Rouge,
Louisiana 70809,
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Note 14 -

Note 15 -

Exhibit F
(Continued)

PENSION PLAN (Continued)
¢. Municipal Police Employces' Retirement System (Continued)

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute 9.0% of their annual-covered
salary and the City is required to contribute al an actuarially determined rate. The current
rate is 7.5% of annual payroll., The contribution requirements of plan members and the
City are established and may be amended by state statute. The City's contributions to the
System for the years ended June 30, 1997, 1996 and 1995 were $156,818, $139,426 and

$127,006, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

At June 30, 1997, employees of the City have accumulated and vested $821,521 of employee
leave benefits, which was computed in accordance with GASB 16. Of this amount, $753,105 1s
recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group, and $68,416 is recorded in the

Enterprise Fund.

PRIOR-YEAR DEFEASANCE OF DEBT

On Auvgust 1, 1987, the City issued $4.35 million in General Obligation Bonds with interest rates
of 6.3% to 10.0% to advance the refund of $3.3 million of outstanding 1986 Certificates of
Indebtedness of the Enterprise Fund with interest rates of 7.0% to 7.75%.

On December 1, 1991, the City issued $6,805,000, in General Obligation Bonds with interest rates
of 4.4% to 6.2% to advance the refund of $2,360,000 of Public Improvement Bonds with interest
rates of 10.4% to 10.75% and $3,595,000 of Public Improvement Bonds with interest ratcs of
8.4% 10 9.3%.

The City placed sufficient proceeds of the new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all
future debt service payments on the old debt. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the
liability for the defeased debt are not included in the City's financial statements.
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Exhibit ¥
(Continued)

Note 16 - COMPENSATION PAID THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

The compensation paid the Mayor and City Council for the year ended June 30, 1997, 1S as

follows:

Russell "Tippy" DePaula, Mayor $40,000
LaVanner Brown 7,200
Jerry Correjolles 7,200
John D. Guerin 7,200
Lionel Wells 7,200
David Vial 7,200

Total $76,000

Terms of office expire December 31, 1998.

Note 17 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES OF INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

The following individual funds have deficits at June 30, 1997:

Fund _ Deficit
LLaw Enforcement Grants Fund $(180)
Special Assessment Certificales Fund (3,674)
Aviation Grant Fund (4,511)
Airport Capital Project Fund (4,772)

The City intends to eliminate these deficit fund balances in the next fiscal year by transferring
funds from the General Fund.

Note 18 - REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

The following individual funds had actual revenues less than budgeted revenues or actual
expenditures over budgeted expenditures by 5% or more for the year ended June 30, 1997

Unfavorable

I'und Budget ~ _Actual  _Variances
Special revenue funds:
Revenues:

Fire Department Hazardous

Materials Fund $ 800 $ 581 $ (219)
Emergency Shelter Grant Fund 30,750 8,611 (22,139)
Police Education and Training Fund 5,900 4,992 (908)
Local Law Enforcement Block

Grant Fund 94,296 23,852 (70,444)
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\Note 19 -

Exhibit F
(Continued)

REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (Continued)
Unfavorable
Fund Budget Actual Variance
Expenditures:
IFmHA Industrial Development
Grant I'und - 2.420 (2,420)

State law requires that budgets be amended when actual revenue are less than budgeted revenues
or actual expenditures exceed budget by 5% or more.

DESIGNATED AND RESERVED FUND BALANCES

Fund Balances designated and reserved at June 30, 1997, other than reserves for inventory of
$127.269 and encumbrances of $158,231 are as follows:

Designated Reserved.
Special Debt
Revenue Fiduciary Total Service
_Funds =~ _Funds  Designated _ Funds
L.aw Enforcement $ (180) $ - % (180) § -
Confiscated Cash 2,300 - 2,300 -
I'ire Dept. Hazardous
Materials 11,633 - 11,633 -
Court Witness Fees 205,108 - 205,108 -
Police Education and
Training 29,741 - 29.741 -
Downtown Development
District 221,882 - 221,882 -
I'ire / Police Millage 701,809 - 701,809 -
I'mHA Industrial
Development 297,871 - 297,871 -
Industrial Development 544,696 - 544,696 -
Project M.O.T.1.O.N. - 2,953 2,953 -
Library Trust - 22,117 22,117 -
General Obligation Bond - - - 20,000
Sales Tax Bond - - - 2,173,618
Certificates of Indebtedness . _ - - 129,824
Fund balances
designated
and reserved 2,014 860 $25.070  $2,039930  $2,323,442
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(Continued)

Note 21 - RISK MANAGEMENT
General Liability and Worker's Compensation Insurance

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to tort; thefi of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employecs; and natural disasters. To account for and
finance its uninsured risk of loss, the City has established an Insurance Fund (an internal service
fund). Under this program, the Insurance Fund provides coverage for up to a maximum of
$250,000 for each worker's compensation claim and $25,000 for each general liability claim.
The City also purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the

fund.

The General Fund, Enterprise Fund, and Downtown Development District Fund of the City
participate in the program and make payments to the fund based on management's estimates of
the amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims. These interfund "premiums" related
to workers' compensation, general liability and property insurance coverages are reported as
quasi-external transactions. At June 30, 1997, the outstanding claims liability was $279,184.
No estimated liability for incurred but not reported claims has been made. The liability is based
on the requirements of GASB No. 10, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing
and Related Insurance Issues" which requires that a liability for claims be reported if
information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable and the

amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Settlements did not exceed insurance coverage
for each of the past three fiscal years.

Changes m the general liability and workers' compensation claims liability amount for the years
ended June 30, 1997, 1996 and 1995 were:

Current

Beginning Year
of Year Claims Claimn Balance at
_Laability . and Estimates  Payments Year IEnd
1997 $57,024 $397,268 $(175,108) $279.184
1996 88,735 51,427 (83,138) 57,024
1995 30,000 79,621 (20,886) 88,735
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Note 21 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Health Insurance

Until May 1, 1996, the City provided health and accident insurance to its employees and
employees of the Marshal's Office and City Court exclusively through health-maintenance
organizations (HMO's). Under this type of program, the City paid initial premiums based on
the level of the employee's participation and had no further liabilities of any claims. LEffective
May 1, 1996, the City self-insures for a portion of its health and accident insurance program.
The City accounts for and finances its uninsured risk of loss through the Insurance Fund. The
Insurance Fund provides coverage for up to a maximum of $25,000 for each employece with
an aggregate liability of $292,984. Effective May 1, 1997, the City terminated the self-
insurance portion of its health and accident insurance program. The City's health and accident
insurance 1s currently a premium for coverage program. The City has no liability for claims
incurred subsequent to May 1, 1997,

The General Fund, Enterprise Fund, and Downtown Development District Fund of the City
as well as the Marshall's Office and Hammond City Court participate in the program and make
payiments to the fund based on management's estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior
and current year claims. These interfund "premiums" are reported as quasi-external
transactions, At June 30, 1997, the outstanding claims liability was $120,000. No estimated
liability for incurred but not reported claims has been made. The liability is based on the
requirements of GASB No. 10, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and
Related Insurance Issues" which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information

prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable and the amount
of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

Changes in the claims liability amount for the years ended June 30, 1997 and 1996 was;

Current
Beginning Year
of Year Claims Claims Balance at
_Liability . and Estimates Payments Year End
1997 $68,240 $652.901 $(601,141) $120,000
1996 - 91,200 (22,960) 68,240
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Exhibit F
(Continued)

SUPPLEMENTAL PAY

In addition to the compensation paid to the City of Hammond's employees, employees who arc
firemen, may be eligible to receive supplemental pay. Each type of employee is governed by their
particular revised statute. The amount of the compensation 1s determined by State Law and is
revised periodically.

As per Louisiana Reviewed Statute 33:2002, any full-time, regular employee of the City firc
department who 1s hired after March 31, 1986 and who has passed a certified firemen's training
program equal to the National Fire Protection Association Standard 1001 and who is paid three
hundred dollars per month from public funds is eligible for supplemental pay. These full-time
employees are carried on the payroll paid from funds of the City obtained through lawflully
adopted bond issucs or lawfully assessed taxes, either directly or through a board or commission
set up by law or ordinance. Employees employed by the fire department are not eligible for
supplemental pay if they are presently drawing a retirement or disability pension, clerical
employees and mechanics and for those employees who have not passed a certified firemen's
training program but are hired after March 31, 1986. State supplemental pay for fire fighters must
be taken into account in calculating fire fighters longevity pay, holiday pay, and overtime pay.

As per Louisiana Revised Statute 33:2219.2, any employee who devotes his or her full working
time to law enforcement and who is hired after March 31, 1986 and who has completed a council
certified training program as provided 1n Louisiana Revised statute 40:2405 and 1s paid a salary
of not less than three hundred fifty dollars per month shall be paid by the state cxtra
compensation. A police officer entitled to additional pay out of state funds includes any person
employed on a full-time basis who works as a duly commissioned law enforcement officer for the
performance of primary duties which encompass the enforcement of state laws, supervisory police
work, provides necessary services to the officers, desk sergeant or identification technician or a
full-time radio dispatcher. Any person who received additional pay out of state funds shall
continue to receive said additional state pay during any pertod of disability resulting from any
injury sustained in the line of duty, The additional pay out of state funds shall continue to be paid
to such person until such time that said person is determined to be permanently disabled and not
longer able to return to work.

As of June 30, 1997, the City has recognized $370,062 in revenues (Intergovernmental) and
expenditures (public safety) that the State of Louisiana has paid directly to the City's employees.

LITIGATION AND CLAIMS

At June 30, 1997, the City is a defendant in several lawsuits seeking damages. In the opinion of
the City, liabilities arising from these claims and legal actions, if any, will not be significant.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIVIDUAL
FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS




GENERAL FUND

To account for resources traditionally associated with governments which are not required
to be accounted for in another {fund.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

ENTERPRISE FUND
WATER AND SEWER FUND

City of Hamnmond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

Opecerating Revenues

Sewer charges

Water sales

Tap-in and reconnect fees
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues
Operating Expenses
Personnel services
Contractual services, supplies, materials, and other
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

Operating Income

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income
Interest expense
Total non-operating revenues (expenscs)

Net Income

Add depreciation on fixed asscts acquired by capital
contributions that reduces contributed capital

Increase in retained earnings

Retained Earnings
Beginning of year

Residual equity transfer
End of year

712
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$ 1,659,630
1,014,001
80,732
11,726

. 2,766,149
714,401
898,310

652,144

2,264,855

501,294

111,411

. (165,810)

1(54,399)

446,895

362,216

809,111

1,982,602

7,850

$2,799,563




Schedule I:-S
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
WATER AND SEWER FUND

City of Hammond
For the year ended June 30, 1997

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Operating income $ 501,294
Adjustments to reconcile net operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 647,535
Amortization 4,609
Provision for bad debt 3,349
Change in current assets - (increase) decrease:
Accounts receivable 140,018
Due from other Governments 213,524
Change in current liabilities - increase (decrease):
Accounts payables (19,169)
Other payables 4,588
Due to other governments 48,898
Customer deposits o (5,236)
Total adjustments 1,038,116
Net cash provided by operating activities - 1,539,410
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Principal repayments (195,000)
Capital contributions 901,085
Interest expense (165,810)
Payment for capttal assets - (2,131,271)
Net cash vsed for capital and related financing activities - (1,590,996)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest income 111,411
Purchases of investments (56,747)
Net cash provided by investing activities 54,604
Nct Increase In Cash 3,078
Cash
Beginning of year 68,903
End of year $ 71,981
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Salaries and wages
Social security
Municipal employee retirement
Health and life insurance
Worker's compensation insurance
Contract labor
Property insurance
Auto liability insurance
General liability
Ultilities

Postage and box rent
Telephone - long distance
Maintenance:

Buildings

Autos and trucks

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES
BY DEPARTMENT

Machinery and equipment

Lines and pumps

FFire hydrants

Ultraviolet lamp

Chlorination
Infiltration

Sludge removal
Laboratory test chatrge
Supplies:

Office
Uniforms
Vehicles
[.aboratory

Scwerage treatment

Chlorine

Safety equipment

Balance carried forward

ENTERFPRISES FUND
WATER AND SEWER FUND

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

(General and
Administrative

$ 56,432
4,292
3,507
4,384

378
20,108

_ 104,852

Water

Department

§ 253,464
19,463
15,126
15,667
15,526

5,220
5,350
8,000
17,500
81,382

15,233
7,297
103,213
2,641

5,720

4,810
10,917

18,055
.. 2,067

606,651

74

Sewer

Department

$ 129,637
9,779
7.474

10,406
6,931
14,974
450
10,500
9,600
52,423

6,245
17,075
40,300

15,602

1,164
8,118

342,024

1,346

Plant

Operations

$ 94,111
7,156
5,410
7,300

7,656

160,128

3,235
11,252
82 987

38,685

-

32,245
16,071

4,996
1,861
2,773
11,856
16,120

384

504,226

Schedule E-4

~ Total

$ 533,644
40,690
31,517
37,757
30,491
40,302

3,800
18,500
27,100

293,933
11,631
365

3,235
32,730
107,359
143,513
2,641
38,685
5,720
15,602
32 245
16,071

7.959

8.627
21,808
11,856
16,120
18,055

3,797

1,557,753




Balance brought forward

Small tools and equipment
Computer mapping system
Electronic water well monitoring
Travel and education

State fees and permits
Consultant / inspection fees
Cash short / over
Amorlization expense
Depreciation expense

Bad debt expense

Beeper fees

Paying agent fees

Meters

Miscellaneous expenses

Totals

General and

Administrative

104,852

$ 105,525

- ———— e ——— —_———

Water

_Department

606,651

13,538

1,238

4,609
484,099
1,176
574

600

75

Sewer

Department

342,024

3,957

1,394

163,436
2,173
144
1,028

Plant
Operations

- 504,226

AT

2,729

610
13,339

91

-

$ 520,995

Total

1,557,753
20,224

3,242
13,339

29
4,609
647,535
3.349
809
1,628
11,694
644

$2,264,855

Schedule E-4
(Continued)




INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

To account for the financing of a self-insured plan for general liability, workers compensation and

employce health insurance, insurance provided by one department to another department of the City
on a premium basis.




BALANCE SHEET

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

City of Hammond

June 30, 1997

ASSETS
Cash

Investments
Accounts receivable

Total assels

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Workers' compensation claims payable

Health insurance claims payable
General liability claims payable

Total liabilities

FUND EQUITY
Retained earnings - reserved

Total liabilities and fund equity

Schedule E-5

$ 161,139
1,002,623
219,954

$1,383,716

$ 2,206
95,438
120,000
183,746

401,390

082,326

$__l_?383,7l(1




STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

Operating Revenues

Insurance charges
Insurance reimbursement

Total operating revenues

Opecerating Expenses
Workers' compensation insurance and administration
Workers' compensation claims expense
General liability insurance and administration
General liability claims expense
Health insurance and administration
Health claims expense

Total operating expenses

Net Operating Income

Non-Operating Revenues
Interest income

Net Income

Retained Earnings
Beginning of year

Ind of year

T7
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Schedule I*6

$1,215,682
360,685

1,576,367
97,465
75,429

254 950
321,839
173,248
- 652,901

1,575,832

535

37,884

38,419

943,907

$ 982,326
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

—_—_—————

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile net operating income to net

cash provided by operating activities:
Changes in current asset - (increase) decrease:

Insurance deposits
Accounts receivable
Change in current liabilities - increase (decrease):

Accounts payable
Workers' compensation claims payable
Health insurance claims payable

General liability
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest income
Purchase of investments
Net cash used by investing activities

Net Cash Increase

Cash
Beginning of year

IEnd of year
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$ 535

212,903
(219,954)

(94,213)
38,414
51,760

183,746
172,656
173,191
37,884
(111,143)
- (73,259)

99,932

61,207

$ 161,139
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FIDUCIARY TYPE FUNDS

PENSION TRUST FUND

Firemen's Pension IFund - To account for a pension fund established for the Hammond Iire
Department. Funding is from annual appropriations from the General Fund.

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

Project M.O.T.ILO.N. FFund - To account for a trust fund established to receive and disburse funds
as part of a law enforcement grant to various Tangipahoa Parish law enforcement agencies.

LIBRARY TRUST FUND

Library Trust Fund - To account for a trust fund established for the purpose of establishing a new
library or upgrading the existing library.




Schedule F-1
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
City of Hammond
June 30, 1997
Pension
Lrust __Expendable Trust
Fireman's Project Library
Pension M.O.TION.  Trust ~ Total
ASSETS
Cash $ 862 $ 974 $ 1 $ 1,837
Investments, at cost 75,647 - 22,116 97,763
Due from other Governments - 4,905 - - 4,905
Total assets $76,509 § 5879  §$22,117 §$ 104,505
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - $ 464 $ - % 464
Due to other funds - 2,462 . 2,462
Total liabilities L2920 - 2,926
FUND EQUITY
Retained earnings:
Reserved for employee retirement 76,509 - - 76,509
I'und balances
Designated:
Law enforcement - 2,953 - 2,953
Library - - C 22,117 22117
Total fund balance - 2,953 22,117 25,070
Total fund equity 16,509 2953 22,117 101,579
Total liabilities and fund
balance $76,509.  § 5,879  $22,117 § 104,505
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN.FUND BALANCE

PENSION TRUST FUND
IREMEN'S PENSION FUND

For the year ended June 30, 1997

Operating Revenues
Insurance benefits

Operating Expenses
Benefit payments

Total expenses
Operating loss

Non-Operating Revenues
Interest earncd on investments

Income Before Operating Transfers

Operating Transfers Out
Net loss

Retained Earnings
Beginning of year, as restated

End of year

City of Hammond

Schedule F-2

21,532
27,532

(27,532)

116,930
(10,602)
(238,091)

(248,693)

- 325,202

$ 76,509




Schedule F-3
STATEMENT OF CASH FLLOWS

PENSION TRUST FUND
FIREMEN'S PENSION FUND

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Operating loss $ (27,532)
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities

Operating transfers out - (238,091)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Interest income 16,930

Sale of investinents - 248,570

Net cash provided by investing activities - 265,500

Net Decrease In Cash (123)
Cash

Beginning of year 98BS

End of year $ 862




Schedule F-4

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

Project Library
M.O.I.ION.  Trust ~  Total

Revenues

FFederal grant $ 42,688 $ - $ 42,688

Interest 322 _L11S - 1,437

Total revenues 43.010 1,115 44.125

Expenditures

Police equipment 56421 - 56,421
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures (13,411) 1,115 (12,296)
Other Financing Sources

Operating transfer in 16,965 = 16,965
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources

Over Expenditures 3,554 1,115 4,669
IFund Balance (Deficit)

Beginning of year (601) 21,002 20401

End of year $ 2,953 $ 22,117 § 25070
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

To account for fixed assets not used in proprietary fund operations.
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Schedule G-1

STATEMENT OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY SOURCES

City of Hammond

June 30, 1997

General Fixed Assets, at Cost

Land
Building
Vehicles
Equipment

Total general fixed assets

Investments in General Fixed Assets From

General fund

Sales tax
Downtown development

Total investment in general fixed assets

$ 1,458,150
4,914,340
3,045,590

1,467,032

$ 10,885,112

$ 9,444,662
15438:848
1,602

$ 10,885,112




GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP

To account for unmatured principal amounts on general long-term debt and capital lease expected to
be {inanced from government-type funds. Payment of maturing obligations, including intercst, arc
accounted for in the debt service funds. To also account for the accumulated unpaid vacation to be

{inanced from the General Fund.
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Schedule H-1
STATEMENT OF GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT
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City of Hammond

I'or the year ended June 30, 1997

Amount Available and To Be Provided For the
Retirement of General Long-Term Debt

Amount available in:

Gieneral obligation bond fund $ 20,000
Sales tax bond fund 2,173,618
Certificates of indebtedness fund 129,824
Amount to be provided in future years from:

1% sales and use tax 6,320,382
General fund 124,527
Certificates of indebtedness fund 430,176
Amount to be provided - accumulated unpaid leave - 753,105

Total amount available and to be provided $9,951,632

General Long-Term Debt Payable

Accumulated unpaid leave $ 753,105
1973 public improvement bonds 20,000
Sales Tax #3 - #5 64,000
Sales Tax #2B - #2D 8,430,000
Certificates of indebtedness 560,000
Capital lease 124,527

Total general long-term debt payable $ 9,951,632
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SPECIAL REPORTS OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS AND OMB A-133




Schedule 1-1

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

I'ederal
CFDA
__Jederal Grantor/ Program Iitle ~~~~~ Number  Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Community Development Block Grant -
Small Cities Contract 101-6061 14.219 $ 709,146
Emergency Shelter Grant Program 14.231 - 8,611
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development - 717,757
U.S. Department of Justice ~ Project#
COPS FAST 95-CF-WXZ-1517 16.711 60,408
Juvenile Officer Training 94-J.8-1.2-0257 16.540 400
In-Home Detention Program 96-1.5-1.3-0230 16.540 10,789
Multi-Jurisdictional Task Force 95-B.5-B.02-0E06 16.579 7,306
Multi-Jurisdictional Task Force 96-B.5-B.02-0E11 16.579 34,886
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 06-1.B-VX-3378 16.579 22 057
Street Gang Reduction 96-B.5-B.07-0062 16.579 - 12,893
Total U.S. Department of Justice 148,739
U.S. Department of Transportation
Airport Improvements Program 053-01-0010 20.106 53,042
Sclective Law Iinforcement Unit 0654 20.600 12,287
Total U.S. Department of Transportation - 65,329
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Rural Development Program 10.424 ~ 50,000
Total Federal Expenditures $ 981,825
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Note 1 -

Note 2 -

Note 3 -

Note 4 -

NOTES TO SCHEDULLF. OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AWARDS

City of Hammond

June 30, 1997

SCOPE OF AUDIT PURSUANT TO OMB CIRCULAR A-133, SINGLE AUDIT
ACT OF 1984

All Federal grant awards of the Primary Government of the City of Hammond are included
in the scope of the OMB Circular A-133, Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996. The
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development is the City's oversight
Federal audit agency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of 'ederal Awards has been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting.

REVOLVING LOAN FUND
The Primary Government administers a revolving industrial development loan fund to

provide low interest loans to businesses in the City of Hammond. Total funds of $374,282

were provided to the Primary Government from the U.S. Department of Agriculture. Total
loans receivable net of uncollectible amounts under this program at June 30, 1997 was

$228,796.
FINDINGS OF NONCOMPLIANCE

There were no findings or questioned cost for the year ended June 30, 1997.
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Schedule 1-2

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

City of Hammond

IFor the year ended June 30, 1997

A. Summary of Audit Results

The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the primary government financial statements
of the City of Hammond, Louistana,

There were no reportable conditions disclosed during the audit of the primary government financial
statements.

. No instances of noncompliance material to the primary government financial statements of City of

Hammond, Louisiana, were disclosed during the audit.
There were no reportable conditions disclosed during the audit of the major federal award programs.

The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for City of Hammond,
Louisiana, expresses an unqualified opinion.

Audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for City of Hammond, Louisiana, are
reported in Part C of this Schedule,

The program tested as major programs included:
Federal
CFDA Number
Community Development Block Grant - Small Cities 14.219
The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

The City of Hammond, Louisiana, was not determined to be a low-risk auditee.

Findings - Financial Statement Audit

There were no findings disclosed during the audit of the primary government financial statements.

Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs Audit

There were no findings or questioned cost disclosed during the year ended June 30, 1997.
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

There were no findings or questioned cost for the year ended June 30, 1996.
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Bourgeois Bennett

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INT AL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORT ASED AN AUDIT OF
PRIMARY GOYERNMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
- GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Russell "Tippy" DePaula, Mayor
and Members of the Council
City of Hammond, L.ouisiana

We have audited the primary government financial statements of the City of IHammond,
Louisiana (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 1997, and have issued our report thereon
dated August 27, 1997. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's primary government
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with

certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance, with which could have
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the primary government financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over
financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessary disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material
weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of
the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements

| 340 West Tunnel Bivd., Suite 438 Certified Public | PO. Box 60600 5304 West Second Strey
P.O.Box 2168 Accountants | Consultants | New Orleans, LA 70160-0600 P.O.Box 1205
Houma, LA 70361-2168 A Limited Liability Company | Heritage Piaza, Suite 800 Thibodaux, LA 703021205
Phone (504) 868-013% Phone (504) 831-4949 Phone (504) 447.5243

Fax (504) 879-1949 Fax (504) 833.9093
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in amounts that would be material in relation to the primary government {inancial statements being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of

performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting and its operations that we consider to be material weaknesses.
This report is intended for the information of the audit committee, management, and various

federal and state audit agencies. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution
1s not limited.

/énugw WZ.Z.C’.

Certified Public Accountants.

New Orleans, La.,
August 27, 1997,
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Bourgeois Bennett

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Russell "Tippy" DePaula, Mayor
and Members of the Council
City of Hammond, Louisiana

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Hammond, I.ouisiana (the City), with the types
of compliance requirements described in the U, S, Office of Management and Budget (OM ircular
A-133_Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 1997. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of ils major federal
programs 1s the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
[Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material cffect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes ¢xamining, on a test basis, evidence about
the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with those requirements.

| 340 West Tunned Blvd., Suite 430 Certified Public | PO. Box 60600 504 West Second Strect
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In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1997.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable (o
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance
and to test and repott on iniernal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Cur consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all
malters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition
in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce
to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing

their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its
opcration that we consider 10 be material weaknesses.

This report 1s intended for the information of the audit committee, management, and various

federal and state audit agencies. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution
is not limited.

/ém%ub W [0

Certified Public Accountants.

New Orleans, l.a.,
August 27, 1997.

92




- )
r.llr.“ - e
Ee— J - JL-.'..F:E_'I!L’E“[E

S PRy
1 1 I,'r't{-‘!'"‘

Bourgeois Bennett | T

August 27, 1997

To the Honorable Russell "Tippy" Depaula, Mayor
and Members of the Council
City of Hammond, Louisiana

We have completed our audit of the City of Hammond for the year ended June 30, 1997
and have presented our report thereon under a separate cover. In fulfilling our responsibility as

the City's auditors, we are required to communicate to the Council certain matters related to the
conduct of our audit.

1. AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILIT INDER R PTEL
MlMMDARMDWM

Our audit was conducted 1n accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
and "Government Auditing Standards" issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the primary government financial statements
are free of material misstatements.

As required, a separate letter has been tssued on internal control and compliance
with laws and regulations.

We have complied with the requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments of
1996 and OMB Circular A-133,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to the primary government
financial statements. For the year ended June 30, 1997, the City adopted one new
accounting policy. Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)

Statement No. 24 entitled "Accounting and Reporting for Certain Grants and
Other Assistance." No other accounting policies were adopted nor required to be

adopted for the year ended June 30, 1997.

| 340 West Tunne! Blvd., Suite 430 Certified Public PO Box 60600 504 West Secorat Seds
P.O. Box 1168 Accountants | Consultants | New Orleans, LA 70160-0600 P.O. Box 1205

Houma, LA 70361-2168 A Limited Liability Company | Heritage Plaza, Suite 800 Thibodaux, LA 70407- 205
Phone (504) B4B-0139 Phone (504) 831-4949 Phone (504) 447.5: 43

Fax {504} 87%-1949 Fax {504) 833-9093
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August 27 1997
Page 2

3. MANAGEMENT JUDGMENT AND ACCOUNT ESTIMATES

The most significant estimates reflected in the financial statements relate to the
collectibility of accounts receivable, accrual of unbilled utility revenue, insurance
claims payable and claims and judgements incurred. Management has provided
us with representations concemning these matters.

4. SIGNIFICANT AUDIT ADJUSTMENTS
There were various significant audit adjustments made during our

recent audit. Copies were furnished to management and were
recorded 1n the City's accounting records.

CURRENT YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS

While state and local governments must face the problems of shrinking revenues and the
escalating costs, services must stll be provided. The challenge of local government is to maintain
the high level of service residents have received in the past, while working with a smaller revenue

base. Proper planning, management controls, and operational effectiveness can promote
efticiency in govemment.

To assist you tn your efforts to promote efficiency and effectiveness in government and
bring to your attention items noted during our audit of the primary government financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 1997, we offer the following suggestions and comments.

PUBLICATION OF MINUTES

Comment - When venifying that all City Council minutes had been published in the
official journal 1t was discovered that the minutes for eight meetings had not been published.

Recommendation - The Council clerk should maintain a listing of all Council meetings
and ordinances which are required to be published in the official journal. The listing should

deteaul the date of the Council meeting or ordinance and the date when publication occurred.
Also, the Clerk should retain a copy of the publication to support information on the list.
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Response - The Council Clerk is now maintaining a listing of all Council meetings and
ordinances which are required to be published 1n the official journal and is retaining a copy of the
publication.

PURCHASING

Comment - During the year there was a contract for landscaping services which was
automatically renewed rather than being placed out on bid.

Recommendation - In the future additional care should be taken to bid out such contracts
prior to their expiration in order to avoid a discontinuance of services.

Response - The Purchasing Agent 1s now maintaining a date index file on all City
contracts.

Comment - During the year there was an emergency purchase of a water system pump.
The declaration of the emergency purchase was not publicized within the ten day time period as
required by Louisiana Revised Statute.

Recommendation - In the future when emergency purchases are made all public notices
should be published in accordance with Louisiana Revised Statutes.

Response - The Council Clerk has been informed of this process and will advertise all
future emergency purchases within the ten day time period.

WATER AND SEWER RECEIVABLES

Comment - While reviewing the utility billing accounts receivable trail balance, we noted
several closed accounts with outstanding balances owed to the City in excess of six months old.

Recommendation - The utility clerk should perform a periodic evaluation of utility
recervables on accounts which had been closed and determine the collectibility of these accounts.
The accounting supervisor should then approve the write-off of those accounts deemed

uncollectible.
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Response - The Utility Billing Supervisor will review all closed accounts with outstanding
balances every 60 days at the end of each billing cycle. All write-offs of uncollectible accounts
will be reviewed by the Financial Information Officer.

INSURANCE

Comment - Currently, the City maintains an internal service fund to account for workers
compensation and property and general liability self-insurance coverages. The premiums charged
to various participating funds for workers compensation and property and general liability self-
Insurance coverages are based on premiums previously charged to the City by third party insurers.

Recommendation - An analysis of workers compensation and general liability insurance
premiums should be performed comparing the total premium revenue to the expenses incurred
and determine if a premium adjustment for workers compensation or property and general
iability insurance 1s appropriate.

Response - In the future an analysis of premium revenue to expenses incurred will be done
at the end of each fiscal year. Any excess surplus will be transferred to the General Fund Surplus.

Comment - Currently the City maintains one internal service fund to account for various
selt-insured coverages.

Recommendation - Consideration should be given to establishing individual funds for
workers compensation insurance and property and general liability insurance. This would aid in
evaluating the adequacy of premiums charged based on type of coverage.

Response - Individual funds have been set up for the various self-insured coverages.

NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS AFFECTING THE CITY

Comment - In May 1995 the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued
Statement No. 31, entitled “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for
External Investment Pools.” This statement establishes accounting and financial reporting
standards for certain types of investments.
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Recommendation - We recommend that this statement be reviewed so that its provisions
are applied.

Response - GASB Statement No. 31 has been reviewed and all provisions applied.

PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

Comment - During our review of the General Fixed Asset Listing, we noted certain
buildings were included on the listing which were no longer owned by the City. We also noted
that certain properties acquired during the year as a result of land swap were not included on the
listing. This was not a problem in the current year.

PURCHASING

Comment - The purchasing department maintains files on bids solicited from potential
vendors for purchases 1n excess of $10,000. This file contains bid specifications, copies of bids

received and a bid recap sheet. These files do not include copies of ads published requesting
proposals. This was not a problem during the current year.

Comment - When reviewing compliance with bid laws purchases were made under two
state contracts and one contract of a local government which were not included in the purchasing
department files. This was not a problem during the current year.

Comment - Currently the City attaches copies of purchase orders to invoices prior to
processing by the accounting department. Consideration should be given to increasing the
amount of documentation attached to invoices prior to payment. This was not a problem durtng
the current year.

METER DEPOSITS PAYABLE

Comment - Dunng our review of the internal control structure of the City it came to our
attention that the detail meter deposit payable listing 1s not reconciled to the meter deposit payable
account in the general ledger. This was not a problem during the current year.
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PAYROLL

Comment - During our review of payroll transactions, it was noted that personnel files for
three individuals had not been updated for pay increases and do not properly reflect these
employees' current rate of pay. This was not a problem during the current year.

GENERAL ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES

Comment - Supporting documentation and calculations are not attached to journal entries
entered into the general ledger. This was not a problem during the current year.

This report is intended for the information of the audit committee, management, and the
Louisiana Legislative Auditor. However, this report is a matter of public record, and its
distribution 1s not Iimited.

Very truly yours,
e
For the Firm.

LSN/df

hi\ragt-lts\hammeond . wpd
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ASSETS
Cash
Investments, at cost
Franchise taxes receivable
Other receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventory, at cost

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Payroll taxes payable
Salaries payable

Due to other governments

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCE
Reserved for inventory

Reserved for encumbrances
Unreserved - undesignated

Total fund balance

BALANCE SHEET

—_——_— - = =

GENERAL FUND
City of Hammond

June 30, 1997

Total habilities and fund balance

43

E—— T w1

Schedule AI

$ 12,451
1,024,355
94,871

100

17,544
347,461
127,269

$ 1,624,051
$ 214,283
38,177
112,405
2,373

367,238
127,269
120,698

- 1,008,846

1,256,813

$1,624,051

f———_———




Revenues
Taxes

Schedule A-2

STATEMENT OF REYENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAIL FUND

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Sanitation service fees
Parks and recreation

Airport

Intergovernmental

Interest

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures

General Government

Public safety

Highways and streets

Cemeteries and municipal grounds

Sanitation

Parks and recreation

Airport

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of {ixed assets

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Deficiency of Revenues and Other Sources
Over Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balance
Beginning of year

End of year

44

__Budget

$ 2,166,000
1,440,000
308,500
425,000
108,450
52,150
424,062
40,000
250,120

9,214,282

2,220,258
5,801,200
082,512
529,542
465,000
307,573
175,703

10,481,788

- (5,267,506)

38,000
5,344,091
. (167,512)

4,614,579

(652,927)

1,395,524

$__ 742,597

. Actual

$ 2,219,194

_.(4,710,906)

...(809,665)

$ 1,256,813

1,587,311
357,584
435,190

99,552
50,879
442,757
47,249

(275,078

5,514,794

2,136,759
5,773,803
915,415
472,813
461,773
288,744
176,393

_ 10,225,700

37,769
5,344,091

4,572,195

(138,711)

1,395,524

Variance
Favorable

_(Unfavorablc)

$ 53,194
147,311
49,084
10,190
(8,898)
(1,271)
18,695
7,249
24,958

300,512

83,499
27,397
67,097
56,729

3,227
18,829
(690

- 256,088
556,600

(231)
| (42,153)

~(42,384)

514,216

$ 514,216




Taxes

Ad Valorem

STATEMENT OF REVENUES COMPARED TO

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS)

GENERAL FUND

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

Alcoholic beverages

Tobacco
Franchise

Total taxes

Licenses and Permits

Occupational
Video poker

Other

Total licenses and permits

Fines and Forfeitures

City Court

Sanitation Service Fees

Parks and Recreation

Rentals

Concessions
Regisiration fees

Total parks and recreation

45

_Budget

$ 1,630,000
48,000
88,000

_ 400,000

2,166,000

850,000
500,000
...90,000

1,440,000

....308,500

425,000

6,000
10,000
_ 92450

- 108,450

$ 1,654,255
47,669
88,218

429,052

2,219,194

916,802
579,962
90,547

1,587,311

357,584

435,190

5,728
14,930
78,894

99,552

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorablc)

$ 24,255

(331)
218
- 29,052

93,194
66,802

79,962
AT

147,311

49,084

- 106,190

(272)
4,930

- (13,556)

- (8,898)

e d—a . a —amatR 1
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Miscellaneous

LA Department of Highways
Rural fire district

Interest income

Rental income

Fire Insurance Commission
Police reports

Notice fees on taxes

Legal document fees

Sale of cemetery lots
Cemetery fees
Intergovernmental

False alarms

Airport

Donations

Miscellaneous

Total miscellaneous

Total revenucs

46

- Budget

17,000
80,000
40,000
600
30,000
8,500
17,000
10,000
21,000
8,000
424,062
21,000
52,150
6,000

.31,020

766,332

Actual

19,715
80,000
47,249
450
31,223
8,766
17,707
11,173
25,150
9,015
442,757
23,490
50,879
6,150

. 42,239

815,963

$5,514,794

Schedule A-3
(Continued)

VYariance

Favorable
(Unfavorablc)

2,715

7,249
(150)
1,223
266
707
1,173
4,150
1,015
18,695
2,490
(1,271)
150
11,219

49,631

$ 300,512




STATEMENT OF EXPENIMTURES COMPARED TO
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS)

GENERAL FUND

General Government
Council
Mayor's Office
Accounting
Purchasing
Central Garage
Personnel
Legal Services
Data processing
Buildings
Insurance
Other

Total general government

Public Safety

Police department:
Administration
Investigation
Patrol
Juvenile
Correction
Communications
Crime control
Traffic control

Total police department

Fire department:
Administration
Fire fighting
Prevention
Building inspection

Total fire department

Other

Total public safety

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

_ Budget
132,906
185,870
312,581
193,748

62,979
127,960
198,000
106,000
131,244

82,800

. .686,170

2,220,258

610,416
242,299
1,417,579
184,016
270,677
269,221
227,167

104,852

3,326,227

357,091

1,708,769

138,571
270,542

2,474,973

2,801,200

—_——— —————

_Actual

$ 125,930
183,285
288,697
178,646

68,082
111,064
185,398

94,166
132,037

83,597

2,136,759

610,838
236,960
1,452,712
189,915
255,603
276,322
242.346
110,868

L 3:379,064

339,973
1,670,823
132,732

L 254,429
2,391,957
282

L2 773,803

085,857

S

chedule A-4

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

$

6,976
2,585
23,884
15,102
(5,103)
16,806
12,602
11,834
(793)
(797)
313

83,499

(422)
5,339
(35,133)
(5,899)
15,074
(7,101)
(15,179)
(6,016)

- (49,337)

17,118
37,946
5,839
16,113
- 77,016
(282)

- 27,397




Highway and Streets

Cemeteries and Municipal Grounds

Sanitation

Parks and Recreation
Administration
Facilities and parks
Programs

Total parks and recreation

Airport

Total expenditures

¥

Budget

— ———————— —_——

982512

..029,542

465,000

144,890

162,683

307,573

175,703

$10,481,788

48

915415

L 472,813

L 461,773

132,759
8,269

_147,716

176,393

$10,225,700

— — — ——— - — ks

Schedule A-4
(Continucd)

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

67,097
56,729
3,227
12,131
(8,269)
14,967
18,829

(690)

$ 256,088




SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Sales Tax Fund - To account for sales and use tax collected and its subsequent disbursement in
according with sales tax deduction.

Law Enforcement Grants - To account for the receipt and disbursement of grants passed through
from the Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement.

Confiscated Cash Fund - To account for the collection of the City's share of district court awards and
the subsequent disbursement thereof.

Fire Department Hazardous Materials - To account for receipts and disbursements of funds used
for hazardous materials.

Emergency Shelter Grant - To account for the receipt and disbursement of funds received from a
federal grant. Such funds are used for the operation of an emergency shelter.

Grant Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursements of funds received from a federal grant.
Such funds are for assistance in reforestation of trees within the City.

Court Witness Fees ¥und - To account for the receipt and disbursement of funds received from the
City court for payment of witness fees,

Police Education and Training - To account for the receipt of court costs relating to drug testing of

persons convicted of driving while intoxicated and the disbursement of these funds for police
education and training.

Downtown Development District Fund - To account for interfund transfers which pay for the
rchabilitation of the downtown district.

Fire / Police Millage Fund - To account for the receipt of property taxes in accordance with property
dedication and the disbursement of these funds for fire and police equipment.

Cafeteria Plan Fund - To account for receipts of employee withholdings for insurance coverages.

FmHA Industrial Development - To account for receipt and disbursements of funds received from
FmHA for qualified business loans.

Industrial Development - To account for monies set aside for the promotion of new business within
the City's limits.




COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash
Investments, at cost

Note receivable - (net of allowance

for doubtful accounts of $32,126)
Due from other governments

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Payroll taxes payable
Due to other funds
Salaries payable
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Reserved for encumbrances
Unreserved:

Designated
Undesignated

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

—_— —_————— ———a

June 30, 1997

Sales
Tax

AE W . e

$ 11,294

—_————— Ao A . e T =

rmmar —a - —r——————

$ 6,361

City of Hammond

Law
Enforcement
Grants

- 1,491,322

1,491,32

—_—— s = - - rr——————

$ 1,497,683

- am

(180)

(180)

54,778

Confiscated
Cash

—

$ -
24,408

2,300

-—

2,300

— e aa -

$ 24,408

— - -——




Fire Dept.
Hazardous

Materials

Emergency
Shelter
(Grant

Grrant

$ 136
11,497

$ 11,633

" )
&3

Court
Witness
Fees

$§ 1,711
199,159

4,288

$ 205,158

11,633

11,633

50

205,108

$ 11,633

203,108

$ 205,158

Police Downtown

Education  Development
and ‘Training Dhstnict

$ 3,710 $ 7,060

26,031 216,436

$ 29,741 $ 223496

$ - $ 1,057

- 141

- 240

- 1,438

- 176

29,741 221,882

29,741 222,058

§ 29,741 $ 223,496

My

50

Fire/ FmHA
Police Cafeteria Industrial
Millage Plan Development
S 15,645 $ 2,868 § 3,769
707.216 - 113,306
- - 228,796
§ 722.861 $ 28698 3 347.871
S 2,640 32,848 $ 350,000
2,640 2,848 30,000
18,412 - -
701,809 - 297,871
- 50 -
720,221 50 297,871
$ 722 861 $2.898 $ 347,871

Local Law
Industrial Enforcement
Development  Block Grant
3 - $ 4,902
544 696 76,681
$ 544,696 $ 81,583
3 - 3 -
- 72,239
- 72,239
544,696 -
- 0.344
544,696 9.344
S mnhfa@a $ 81,583

Total

$ 51,159
1,921,430

228,796
1,495,423

$ 3,696,808

5 85,064
141

4,958

240

72,239

162,642

18,588

2,014,860
1,500,718

3,534,166

$ 3,696,808

il e g g i




COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGLES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

Revenues
Taxes
Court witness fees
Intergovernmental
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
Public safety:
Police
Fire
Highways and streets
Parks and recreation
Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from loan
Operating transfer in
Operating transter out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other
Uses

Fund Balances (Deficit)
Beginning of year

End of year

Sales
Tax

——a. e

$ 8,632,185

40,000
47,929

e — O A,

8,720,114

450,726

236,274
217,846

15,918
3,679

— ke e e

7,795,671

140,445
47,853
 (8,248,617)

(8,060,319)

(264,648)

1,753,970

$ 1,491,322

51

Law

Enforcement

Grants

N -

23,682
20

23,702

(3,867)

9,617

9,617

5,750

(5,930)

$__(180)

—

Conftiscated

1,646

(16,965)

(16,965)

(15,319)

17,619

$ 2,300




Scheduile B-2

Fire Dept. Emergency Court Police Downtown Fire / FmHA Local Law
Hazardous Shelter  Grant  Witmess Education  Development Police Cafeteria  Industrial Industrial Enforcement
Materials Grant Fund Fees and Training District Millage Plan = Development Development Block Grant Total
3 - - $ - % - § - $ 93,769 % - $ - $ - 3 - $ - $ 8,725,954
- - - 49,408 - - - - - - - 49,408
- 3,611 - . - 17,500 - - 30,000 - 22,057 161,850
381 1 - 7,484 1,325 9,956 22,963 28 9,839 28,033 },795 131,600
- - - - 3.667 6,806 - - 400 - - 10,873
581 8,612 - 56,892 4,992 128,031 22,963 28 60,235 28,033 23,852 9,079,685
- 8,611 - - - - 420 19 2,420 11,991 - 474,187
- - - 1,625 - - 92,914 - - - 24,508 146,616
- - - - - - 26,122 - - - - 26,122
- - - - - - - - - - - 236,274
- - - - - 103,984 - - - - - 321,830
- - - - - - - - - - - 13,918
. - . - - . - - - - - 3,679
- 8,611 - 1,625 3 - 103,984 119,456 19 2,420 11,991 24,508 1,224,626
581 I - 35,267 4,992 24,047 (56,493) 9 37,819 16,042 {656} 7,853,059
- - - - - - - - - - - 140,445
- - - - - 16,612 542,153 - - - 10,000 426,235
- - . - - . - - - - - (8,265,582)
- - - - - 16,612 342,153 - - - 10,000 {7,698,902)
581 i - 35,267 4,992 40,659 245,660 9 27,819 16,042 9,344 136,157
11,052 - i 149,841 24,749 181,399 474,561 41 246,052 _ 528,654 - 3,378,009
$11,633 1 $ 1 §205108 326,741 3222058  § 720,221 $50 § 297,871 $ 544 696 $ 6,344 $ 3334166
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SALES TAX FUND

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

__Budget =~ Actual
Revenues
Sales and use tax $ 8525000 § 8,632,185
Intergovernmental 40,000 40,000
Interest 30,000 47,929
Total revenues ..8,595,000 8,720,114
Expenditures
General government 493,234 450,726
Jlighways and streets 253,645 236,274
Parks and recreation 420,097 217,846
Debt service
Principal 16,100 15,918
Interest ) 3,700 3,679
Total expenditures 1,186,776 924,443
Lxcess of Revenues Over
Expenditures 7,408,224 7,795,671
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds {rom loan - 140,445
Operating transfer in - 47,853
Operating transfer out 0 (8,248,017)  (8,248,617)
Total other financing sources (uses) - (8,248,617)  (8,060,319)
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Under
Expenditures and Other Uses (840,393) (264,648)
Fund Balance
Beginning of year _L755970 0 1,755,970
End of year $§ 915577 § 1,491,322

e s mawm

53

Scheduie 1B-3

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorablc)

$ 107,185
. 17,929

125,114

42,508
17,371
202,251

182
21

262,333

387,447

140,445
47,853

188,298

575,745

$ 575,745

]




STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL,

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
LAW ENFORCEMENT GRANTS FUND

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

Budget  Actual
Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 24,049 § 23,682
Interest _ - .20
Total revenues 24,049 23,702
Expenditures
Public safety
Police 28,347 27,569
Total expenditures 28,347 27,569
Deficiency of Revenues Over
Expenditures (4,298) (3,867)
Other Financing Sources
Operating transfer in 9617 9617
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over Expenditures and Other
Uses 5,319 5,750
Fund Balancc (Deficit)
Beginning of year .(5,930) (5,930)
End of year $__(611) § (180)

54

Schedule B-4

Variance
Favorable

‘(Unfavorable)

$(367)
20

(347}

778

778

431

431




STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
CONFISCATED CASH FUND

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

Variance
Favorable
_Budget  Actual  (Unfavorablc)
Revenue
Interest $ 1,500 $ 1,646  $ 146
Other Financing Uses
Opcerating transfer out ~(16,965)  (16,965) -
Excess of Revenues Under Other Uses (15,465) (15,319) 146
Fund Balance
Beginning of year 17619 17,619 -
End of year $ 2154 § 2,300 $ 146
55

Schedule B-5




Schedule B-6
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAI,
SPECIAL REYENUE FUND
FIRE DEPARTMENT HAZARDOUS MATERIALS FUND
City of Hammond
FFor the year ended June 30, 1997
Variance
Favorablec
_Budget  Actual  (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Interest $ 400 $ 581 $ 181
Miscellaneous ....400 - . (400)
Total revenues 800 581 (219)
Expenditures
Public safety
Fire 6:09_0_ - ) 6#000
Total expenditures 6,000 - - 6,000
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (5,200) 581 5,781
Fund Balance
Beginning of year 11,052 11,052 -
IEnd of year $_5.852  §$11,633 $ 5,781
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Schedule B-7
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITU RES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BIJDG.E'I_..(GAAB_BASI.S)_AND_AQIILAL
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
EMERGENCY SHELTER GRANT FUND
City of Hammond
For the year ended June 30, 1997
Variance
Favorable
_Budget  Actual  (Unfavorable)
Revenue
Infergovernmental $ 30,750 $8,611 $ (22,139)
Interest =1 o]
Total revenues 30,750 8,612 (22,138)
Expenditures |
General government 30,750 - 8,611 22,139
Total expenditures 30,750 8,611 - 22,139
Excess of Revenues Over
Expenditures - 1 1
Fund Balance
Beginning of year - - -
Iind of year $ - 8 1 $ l
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Schedule B-8
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COURT WITNESS FEES FUND
City of Hammond
For the year ended June 30, 1997
Variance
[Favorable
~Budget  Actual  (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Court witness fees $ 45,000 § 49,408 $ 4,408
Interest L0000 7,484 6,484
Total revenues 46,000 56,892 10,892
Expenditures
Public safety
Police 16500 1,625 14,875
Excess of Revenues Over
Expenditures 29,500 55,267 25,767
Fund Balance
Beginning of year 149,841 149,841 -
IEnd of year $.179,341  §205,108  § 25,767
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Schedule B-10
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
SI’EQIA_L__ILEYEHUE_F UND
DOWNTOWN DEYELOPMENT DISTRICT FUND
City of Hammond
For the year ended June 30, 1997
Variance
Favorable
_Budget  Actual  (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Taxes $ 88,500 $ 93,769 $ 5,269
Intergovernmental 12,500 17,500 5,000
Interest 4,000 9,956 5,956
Miscellaneous = ... 6,806 6,806
Total revenues 105,000 128,031 23,031
Expenditures
Parks and recreation 297,310 103,984 193,326
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (192,310) 24,047 216,357
Other Financing Sources
Operating transfer in _Je612 16,612 e
Excess of Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures (175,698) 40,659 216,357
Fund Balance
Beginning of year 181,399 181,399 o
End of year $§ 5,701 $222,058  $ 216,357
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Schedule B-11

STATEMENT OF REYENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FIRE/POLICE MILLAGE FUND

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

Variance
Favorable
_Budget  Actual  (Unfavorablc)
Revenue
Interest $ 10,000 $ 22963  $ 12,963
Expenditures
General government - 420 (420)
Public safety:
Police 186,450 02.914 03,536
Fire 129,000 26,122 102,878
Total expenditures - 315,450 119,456 - 195,994
Deficiency of Revenucs Over Expenditures (305,450) (96,493) 208,957
Other Financing Sources
Operating transfer in 300,000 342,153 42,153
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures (5,450) 245,660 251,110
Fund Balance
Beginning of year 474,561 474,561 -
End of year $ 469,111 § 720,221  § 251,110
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

Revenue
Interest

Expenditures
General government

Excess of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Fund Balance
Beginning of ycar

End of year

SPECIAL REYENUE FUND
CAFETERIA PLAN FUND

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

Budget  Actual

$ - § 28
- 19

: 0
$ 41 4L
$41 3550

Schedule B-12

Variance
Favorable
{(Unfavorablc)

$ 28

- (19)

$ 9




Schedule B-13

STATEMENT OF REYENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FmHA INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT GRANT FUND

Revenues
Intergovernmental

Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government

Excess of Revenues Over

Expenditures

Fund Balance
Beginning of year

Iind of year

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

Variance
Favorable

_Budget  Actual  (Unfavorablc)
$ - $ 50,000 $ 50,000
- 0,839 9,839
m _..400 . ...400
- 60,239 60,239
- 2420 - (2,420)
- 57,819 57,819
240,052 240,052 -

$ 240,052
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Schedule B-14
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL,

SPECIAL REYENUE FUND
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

City of Hammond

FFor the year ended June 30, 1997

Variance
Favorable
_Budget  Actual  (Unfavorable)
Revenue
Interest 3 30,000 g;___%_g;_@?_’_, _$___(__1_;96_7_)
Expenditures
General Government 21,250 11,991 9,259

Excess of Revenues Over
Expenditures 8,750 16,042 7,292

Fund Balance
Beginning of year 528,654 528,654 -

End of year $ 337,404 § 544,696  $ 7,292
64
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Schedule B-15

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL REYENUE FUND
LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND

City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

Variance
Favorable

~ Budget  Actual  (Unfavorable)

Revenue
Intergovernmental $ 94206 § 22,057 $ (72,239)
Interest s LT9S o L795

Total revenues 94,296 23,852 . (70,444)

Expenditures

Public safety
Police 104298 24508 79,790
Total expenditures 104,298 24,508 - 79,790

Deficiency of Revenues
Over Expenditures - (10,002)  (656) 9,346

Other Financing Sources
Operating transfer in 10,000 10,000 -

Total other financing sources 10,000 10,000 -
LExcess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures (2) 9,344 0,346
Fund Balance
Beginning of year T T T
$.....(2) $ 9344 $ 9,346

IEnd of year
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

General Obligation Bond Fund - To accumulate monies for payment of 1973, $20,000, 5.10%
general obligation bonds, which are serial bonds due in annual installments of principal, plus
semiannual payments of interest, until maturity in 1998.

Sales Tax Bond Fund - To accumulate monies for payment of $8,494,000 of public improvement
bonds. These bonds are composed of various issues, maturity dates, and interest rates and are financed
by a dedication of proceeds of a 2% sales and use tax.

Special Assessment Certificates Fund - To accumulate monies for payment of $410,813 of
certificates. These certificates matured during fiscal year 1996.

Certificates of Indebtedness Fund - To accumulate monies for the payment of the 1990, $560,000

of certificates. These certificates are serial bonds due in annual installments of principal, plus
semiannual payments of interest, until maturity in the year 2000.




Schedule C-1
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
City of Hammond
June 30, 1997
General Sales Spectal Certificates
Obligation Tax Assessment Of
Bond ~ Bond  Certificates Indebtedness  Total
ASSETS
Cash $ 280 % 82 $ 2266 $ - $ 2,628
Invesiments, at cost 138230 2,173,536 - 129824 2,441,590
Total assets $ 138510 $2,173,618  § 2266  $129,824  $2,444,218
LIABILITIES
Due to other funds & - % - § 5940 $ - % 5940
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Reserved for debt service 20,000 2,173,618 - 129,824 2,323,442
Unreserved:
Undesignated 118,510 - (3,674) . 114,836
Total fund balance 138,510  2,173,61! (3,674) - 129,824 - 2,438,278
Tofal liabilities
and fund balance  $ 138,510 $2,173,618 8§ 2266  § 129,824  $2,444,218
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Revenues
Interest

Expenditures
Bond payments:
Princtpal retirement
Interest
Paying agent fees

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfer in

Excess of Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balances
Beginning of year

End of year

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
City of Hammond
June 30, 1997
General Sales
Obligation Tax
. Bond =~ Bond
7708 § 99,258
20,000 791,000
2,040 561,678
1800 2,382
22,220 1,355,060
(14,512)  (1,255,802)
_ .. 1,369,000
(14,512) 113,198
153,022 2,060,420
$ 138,510 § 2,173,618

—— —
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Special
Assessment
Certificates

.

13

$ (3,674)

—_———r - ——— — —

Certificates
Of

_Indebtedness

$ 9037

145,000
50,915
-..600

196,515

(187,478)

195,900

8,422

121,402

$ 129,824

——, —_—— j—

Schedule C-2

Total

$ 116,016

956,000
614,633
3,162

1,573,795
(1,457,779)
1,564,900
107,12 |

2,331,157

$ 2,438,278




CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Improvements - To account for capital improvements from proceeds derived from surplus
sales tax, revenue bond proceeds and grants.
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Sched“; i;: l)-
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

City of Hammond

June 30, 1997

LCDBG
Aviation Capital 1995 Sewer
. Grant  Alrport  Projects ~ Improvement  Total
ASSETS
Cash A\ - $ 20 $ 4,741 $ 1 $ 4,762
Investments, at cost - 131,345 1,500,711 - 1,632,056
Due from other funds - 34,381 - - 34,381
Due from other governments 58,936 .. - 58,936
Total assets $ 58,936  $165746  $1,505452  $1  $1,730,135
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 24,882 $ - $ 21,803 $ - $ 46,685
Due to other governmenis - 170,518 - - 170,518
Due {0 other funds 38,565 - - - 38,565
Retainages payable - - _...50063 50,063
Total liabilities 63,447 ~ 170,518 71,866 - 305,831
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Reserved for encumbrances - - 18,945 - 18,945
Unreserved - undesignated 4511  (4,772) 1,414,641 1 - 1,405,359
Total fund balance (deficit) o @4s1y  4,772) 1,433,586 1 1,424,304
Total Iiabilities and
fund balance $ 58936  $.165746  §$1,505,452 $1 $ 1,730,135
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Schedule D-2

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
City of Hammond

For the year ended June 30, 1997

LCDBG
Aviation Capital 1995 Sewer
_Grant ~ Airport _ Projects  Improvement  Total
Revenues
Intergovernmental $§ 068,526 $ - $ - $ 709,146 $ 777,672
Interest S . 25706 32305 2 58013
Total revenues 68526 25706 32305 709,148 835,685
Expenditures
Intergovernmental - 108,922 - - 108,922
Construction - - 855,993 653,911 1,509,904
Engineering 28,789 - 111,073 22,167 162,029
Grant administration - - - 25,215 25,215
Miscellaneous o867 - 102422 4 112293
Total expenditures 38656 108922  _ 1,069488 701,297 1,918,363
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 20,870 (83216) __(1,037,183) 7851 _ (1,082,678)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfer in . 34,381 2,009,000 - 2,043,381
Operating transfer out 34381y - (41853 - (82,234)
Total other financing sources (uses)  _ (34,381) 34,381 1,961,147 - 1,961,147
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (4,511) (48,835) 923,964 7,851 878,409
Fund Balances (Deficits)
Beginning of year - 44,063 509,622 - 553,685
Residual equity transfer e e e 1880y (7,850)
End of year $ (4511) $ (4772) § 1433586 8 1§ 1,424,304
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ENTERPRISE FUND

Water and Sewer Fund - To account for the provisions of water and sewer services to residents of

the City. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including,
but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt service, and

billing and collection.
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BALANCE SHEET

ENTERPRISE FUND
WATER AND SEWER FUND

City of Hammond

June 30, 1997

ASSETS |
Cash $ 67,747
Investments, at cost 885,804
Recceivables:
Customers (net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $42,000) 676,370
Special assessments:
Current receivable 14,101
Delinquent receivable 5,422
Other receivables 5,127

Total assets 1,654,571

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Customers' deposits:

Cash 4,234
Investments, at cost 452,800
Bond sinking fund 143,457
Bond rescrve fund 129.594
Bond contingency fund 301,386
Total restricted asscts 1,031,471

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (net of accumulated depreciation) 14,864,104

OTHER ASSETS
Bond discount (nct) 38,409
Total assets $ 17,588,555
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Schedule E-1

LIABILITY AND FUND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM CURRENT ASSETS

Accounts payable $ 60,009 i
Retainages payable 08,233
Payroll taxes payable 5,161
Notes payable - current portion 160,000
Salaries payable 12,252
Accumulated leave payable 68,416
Due to other governments 63,030

Total current liabilities payable from current asscts 467,101

CURRENT LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS

Customers' deposits 333,986

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Notes payable - long-term portion 2,585,000
Due 10 other governments 396,276
Total liabilities 3,782,303

FUND EQUITY
Contributed capital -

contributions to aid in construction - 11,006,629
Retained earnings:

Reserved 743,804

Unreserved - undesignated 2,055,759

Total retained earnings 2,799,563

Total fund equity - 13,806,192

Total liabilities and fund equity $ 17,588,555
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